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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor, Clty Council and Manager
City of Claremont, New Hampshire

Report on ihe Financial Statements

We heve audited the accompanying financial statements of the povemmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Claremont, New Hampshire, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes o the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Muanagerment's Responsibility for the Financial Statemenis

Managemen! is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this ineludes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether duee to fraud or
erTar,

Andirer's Responsibiii

Owur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our awdit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the aedit to obtain reasonable assurance about
wheether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit mvelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboutr the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or emor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal confrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
pocounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.



Chpinivns

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the regpective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Claremaont, New Hampshire, as of June
30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the vear then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America,
Other Matters
Reguired Supplemeniory Tnformialion

Accounting principles penerally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discuzsion and analysizs, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in the
City’s proportionate share of the net OPER liability, schedule of City OPEB contributions, schedule of
changes in the City's toml OPEB liability and related mtios, schedule of changes in the City's
proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of City peasion contributions on pages i-viii
and 47-55 be presented o supplement the basic finuncial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the bazic financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who
congiders it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence o express an opinion or provide any
AsSUFANCE.

Mwi Gmm{:nm.td.i}f'—

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 23, 2020



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Claremont, we offar readers this narrative overview and analysis
of the financial activities of the City of Claremont for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, This
analysis compares the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 to the fiscal year ending June 30, 20186.
We encourage readers to consider the information here in conjunction with additional
information that is included within the City's financial statements,

A. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discuszsion and analysis ig intended to serve as an infroduction to the basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1)
government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes fo
financial statements. This report also contains the reguired supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of our financas in & manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statemant of net position presents information on all assets, liabilities, deferred outflows
of resources, and deferred inflows of rezources with the balance reported as net position.
Ower time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicatar of whether
the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as
aoon as the underlying event giving rise fo the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reporied in this statement for some
ftems that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
garmed but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
feas and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include general
government, public safely, airporl, highways and streets, sanitation, health and welfare,
culture and recreation, conservation and debt service. The business-type activities include
water, sewer, and economic development activities.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain contral over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
relaied legal reguirements. All of the funds can be divided into three calegories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds,



Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the govemment-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resourcas, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of tha fiscal year. Such infarmation
may be useful in evaluating a govermment's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial staternants, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar infarmation presented for govemmental activities in the government-wida
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the govemmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditurss and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govermmental funds
and governmental activities.

The governmental fund financial statements provide separate information for the General
Fund, Downtown Tax Increment Financing Fund and the Permanent Funds, which are
considerad to be major funds.

An annual appropriated budget s adopted for the general fund. A budgetary comparison
staferment has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this

hudget.
Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are maintained as follows:

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-iype activilies
in the government-wide financial statements. Specifically, enterprise funds are usad to
account for water, sewer, and economic development opearations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type activities
reported in the govemment-wide financial statemeants, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewer operations,
both of which are considered to be major funds

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
Cily's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional infarmation that is essential o
a full understanding of tha data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying noles,
this report also presents certain required supplementary infarmation which is required to be
disclosed by accounting principles genarally accapted in the United States of America and

ii



the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board

B. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the total assets and deferred outflows of
resources exceeded liabiliies and deferred inflows of resources by $46,088181,
prasented as “net position” shown on the Statement of Met Position for the Total Primary
Government. The City's Net Position increasad by $567,570.

¥ As of the close of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of 510,430,353, a change of $62 618 in comparison with the prior year.

. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund on a
GAAP basis was $740.436. However, unassigned fund balance on a tax rate setting
basis was 52 764,915 See the Notas to Raquired Supplementary Information on page
53 for more infarmation.

. Tetal general obligation bonds payable and tax increment financing bonds payable for all
funds at the close of the current fiscal year was $20,424 180, a change of (52,228 850}
in comparison to the prior year.

C. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of condensed government-wide financial data for the cument
and prior fiscal years.

NET POSITION
Govamriranial Buginese-Type Todsl
Actyitios Actiities
(Restated)
2018 2018 Frital] 2018 2018 EDiE

Gurram and Ofher Assets F16.330,%38  $18,174 551 $10127 855 £10.718,645 25 448 350 338 B9t 600
Capilal frsais 35,530,145 35,206,192 Z7 585881 26,923,541 631126008 63,220,033

Total Assats 50,850,541 54471143 37, 7E3. 844 37840450 80,574,385 92111633

Tekal Deferrad Ouotfiow of Rescuross 4 400 585 4 471 834 142 TL0 180,827 A 543 358 4 5352 461
Lang4erm Labiilies ouiskanding 20771 676 31,982 080 BADDE1Z BETT 168 38,072,187 40858243
Oher Liabdiles 3,087 B3 3183118 1,022, 584 1,333,235 4,110,887 4 518 254

Total Lizhilities IDARg SR 3B 145,196 BAXNENE 10,010,403 42183 074 45,156 802

Tetal Defarnad [nflow of Resowcss 4, 7B2 872 8,046 842 G314 20878 A, 546 356 B, DG 87
Mol Poditian:
Hal invastmand In copial aasels 20919540 20405 582 TH A58 B4 18,450,106 . 4TE,TES 38,858,083
Rasiricted 4 532 631 5,261,283 - - 4,332 583 5,251 263
Uinraatricted {Dedioi) (744 076} (7005475 8,932 810 B276 70 1,078,734 1,370,260

Tala! Net Poaiion 317 806 BT 517,750,763 28 479 B34 227, TED.B35 346,086,191 345520621
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CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Gorearnmeantal Busirass-Typa Tcial
Activilieg Activiiag
Restaied
205 018 amg 018 201G 2018
Revenues;
Frogram revandes;
Charges far seraicas § 1363329 § 1543616 § APBEEA3L 5 4700198 £ S20BA8% & 50438932
Operaiing granks snd
comirioutions 467 609 T46 53T 28, 335 493 943 T4 537
Capilal grards and
comributions 520,708 240535 19,539 254,283 8400248 506 992
General revanues:

Temes 11467243 0,878, 503 11,467,243 10,878,500

Licanaas and parmits 2519127 2283 602 2519127 2 353 802

Irtergpovemimardal HAT 248 BE8 035 GET,249 G648, 0

Irteress £4.5, %6 ST 972 180,335 100113 825,641 477 Bas

Macalianeous 367,209 g8 4TH F57 204 B8 A7E

Total revenues 17837 781 16,865,273 5081, 737 B DE4 582 22,018 518 21,800 840
Expanses:

Cieneral gowarnmant 3 883,093 3 686 678 3 B8 085 1 BAE 78

Public safety 6,105 747 5.9, 781 B, 108,757 5,935,781

Alrport'aviadian canbar TOZ, 358 TOGETE TO2, 368 T8 6T

Higfrerays and sirnais 65T 122 36580 628 38667 122 38508248

SanialEon 175,256 @0, 435 175,288 B0.435

Healh and walfare 415,154 254 554 415,184 358 564

Culune and recrestian 2411252 2 435 102 2.411,232 2498 102

Consenation 1,580 8240 1,580 E 240

Esoramic developmeand E . 34018 BS 417 Moie B 497

Interest and fiscal chasges 94,748 835, TH6 SE4,T4E 636, TG

Wader 1,823 358 1,900, 644 e T 1,90 644

Sawear 2,551 392 2 802,573 2 551,382 2802573

17051 340 17 813 05T 4412 TET A BET E34 23384 907 2,081 53

Changes In net posilion bafone

transfars ang parmanant fund

canbfibulicng (#23,564) (EET 818 ETR AT 486 2@ BES 411 {150,685 |
Tranafars, rat {50829 (3,716) 30,828 3718 - -
Permananl furd contributions 12,1589 4 265 12,158 4 285
Changes in ned peaiion (142,229} (BATOTD 7050, 7E8 500, G 5ET.6TD (146 426G}
Mt Positicn -
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Heq Pasition -

&nd of year S 17608,557 3 1r. 750765 § ZBATRA3 § 37 789,838 § 45088187 § 4882060




As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, total net! position was
546,088,191, a change of $567 570 from the prior year.

The largest portion of the City's net position, 340,478 784 reflects our investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related
debt used fo acquire those assets that is still cutstanding, These capital assets are used to
provide services to citizens; conseguently, these assets are nof available for future
spending. Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noled that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themsealves cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position, $4,532 693 represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unresiricted net
position of 51,078,734 may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities for the year resulted in a change in net
position of ($142,229). Key elements of this change are as follows:

General Fund operating results (per Exhibit DY) 3 98,5200
Downtown Tax Increment Financing Fund
operating results (per Exhibit [ oo, Frd
FPemanent Funds operafing results (per Exhibit D) 247 T38
Monmajar funds operating results (per Exhibit O) (120,374)
Capital asset additions 1,883,952
Depraciation on capifal assats (2,441,033)
lssuance of notes payable (51,730
lssuance of capital leases (296,523)
Issuance of State of NH revolving loan (14,987)
Frincipal paid on bonds payable 1,287,184
Principal paid on notes payable 57,364
Frincipal paid on capital leases 362 559
Met changes in the OPEB (328,530)
Met changes in pension (160,721)
Other GAARF accruals (332,782)
3 (142,229)

Business-Type Activities. Business-type activities for the year resulted in a change in net
position of $708,799. Key elements of this change are as fallows:

Water Fund 3 336,781
Sewar Fund 337,823
Claremont Development Authority Fund 35,185

] 708,799




D. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS
As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstraie compliance with
finance-relatad lagal requiremeants,

Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a governmenl's net resources avallable for spending at the end of the
fizcal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmeantal funds reported combined anding fund
balances of 310,430,353, a change of $62 618 in comparison with the pror year. Key
elements of this change are as follows:

General Fund operations 3 (98,5209

Downtown Tax Increment Financing Fund
operating results 33,774
Permanent Funds operating results 247 738
Nonmajor funds operating results ___(120,374)
3 62,618

The general fund is the main operating fund At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was 5740 436 while total fund balance was
$4,317.082. However, for tax rate setting purposes, unassigned fund balance was
$2.764 915 while the total fund balance was T4 908 544 (see the Notes to the Required
Supplemeantary Information on page 53 for more information).

The fund balance of the general fund changed by ($98,520) during the current fiscal year.
Key factars in this change are as follows:

Revenue and other financing sources

in excess of budget 3 133877
Expenditures and other financing uses

less than budget 1,288,535
Use of fund balance [1,748,113)
Tax collections as compared to budget 299 BEY
Capital lease activity 107,924
Expendiiures of cument year net encumbrances

less than prior year net encumbrances (300,542)
Change in capital reserve funds 18832

] (28,520)

For the purposes of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board statement 54, the
activity of the capital reserve funds are included with the General Fund. However, for
budgelary purposes, the capital reserve funds are not budgeted items.
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The Downtown Tax Increment Financing Fund accounts for the financial fransactions related
to the City's parking garage. At June 30, 2019, this fund was in a deficit position of
$1,047 245,

Permanent funds account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings and not principal may be used for purposes that support the City's programs. At
June 30, 2019, the balance of 33,515,930 was nonspendable and 3128, 705 was restricted
for income eamed on the principal balance.

The total fund balance of $3,517.881 in the other governmental funds is resiricted or
committed for the purposes of the individually established funds. During the year ending
June 30, 2018, fund balance in the other governmental funds decreased by ($120,374)
The majority of this decrease is the result of continued activity in the Public Works Capital
Projects Fund to finance the City's applicable portion of the Main Sireet reconstruchon

project.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
business-type activities reported in the government-wide financial statements, but in more
detail,

Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the fiscal year are 38,522 810.

Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds have alresdy been addressad in
the antity-wide discussion of business-type activities.

E. GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The 2019 budget as presented by the City Manager was approved by the City Counail on
June 13, 2018. The original budget Increased by $83,600, During the fiscal year ending
Jure 30, 2019, the City Council amended the overall budget by issuing supplemental
resolutions after the State set the tax rate in the fall of 2018.

F. CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assats.

Total investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities at year-and
amounted to $63,128 026 {net of accumulated depreciation), a change of (584,007) from the
prior year. This investimen! in capital assets includes land, buildings and system,
improvemeants, and machinery and equipment

Long-term debi.

At the end of the current fiscal year, lotal bonded debt outstanding was $20,424 190, all of
which was backed by the full faith and cradit of the government.

Additional information on capital assets and leng-term debt can be found in the footnotes o
the financial statemeants.
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G. ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

In 2019 economic condilions continued to improve, The vacancy rates in our business
commercial and indusirial zones remain low. Cur large employers have all been hiring and the
unemployment rate is currently below 2%. MNew construction was completed for a Ford garage
and service center on Charlestown Road, and new construction bagan on a new Toyota garage
in the same area.

The City Center has several significant rehabilitation projects underway. The 54,000 SF
Goddard Block renovation is almost complete, with 10 of the 38 new housing units ready for
occupancy. Just down the street, the long vacant upper level of the Farwell Block & under
construction for expansion of the Dantal Center. A long-term tenant has signed an LOI in the
abutting 10.000 SF building, which has been vacant for 25 years. Funding and approvals are
currently in process for that project.

Entreprenaurship and workforce training have bean growing programs in our MakerSpace, and
we anticipate growth in both areas.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Claremont's
finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questicns conceming any
of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial infermation should
be addressed to:

City of Claramomt
Finance Deparment
58 Opera House Sqguare
Claremont, Mew Hampshire 03743
(603) 542-7000

vili
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EXHIRIT

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Balunce Sheet

Governmental Fumis

T 30, 20102

ASSETS

e and cash eqisivalends
ImvEsments
Tixes reeaivable, net
Acoounis receivehile, nel
[hee from ceher govemnei=
Due from other fimds
Advanee w other fumsls
Prepaid expenses

Titnl Ammess

DEFERRED OUFFFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Sehiol tices paid in adwiuicn
‘Tista] Dielerved Ouitllaws of Besmres
Tioanl Aesets mnid Dreferred Ounflows of Besouses:

LIABILITIES

Acciimngs payohle

Acorued exponscs

Frininage pavable

[kaz o ather funds

Advmsce fram other fimds

[ Imearme] revenue

Dreposits

Tital Linbilstics

DEFEERED IMNFLO'WS OF RESCATRCES
Property ties collecied in advance
Uncollecied property taxes
Tilal Dederred Inflows of Posaurces

FLIMDO BALANCES

Mimsperdable
Restricted
Ceamiredtisd
Assigned
Unnssigned {delic)

Loinl Fand Balances {defici)

Tl Lisabalites, Defireed Enflowws of

feesouree, anid Fund Halancss

Dwrmitcnn

T Encramenl Manmesar Toknl
Gereral Fisimcang Piernanint Cuvemmental  Cuvernmenial

Eund Eiand Euniids Eunds Fiwls
5 53005978 3 il 4791 & 5304887
Las2ms % 11 3,660,535 1426261 5,143,710
23R4, 544 2384, 544
57,052 2711 [3.822 73,3457
24,201 92573 116,774
G GTE I352K15 1002, 491
TE1 BT THI &3T
164, 4002 Tird, 42
101,505,152 2924 1,672 35 1 B9 353 I&071,004
2,000,000 2,000,000
DK L0 - - - 2, CHH), )
§ 12005182 0§ 183§ I6TRA3T  OF JBOO2AY 5 2070004
1T L R ° 126 i 15ams 0§ eb4ed
200,k £l
46,517 46,517
1,534,244 WTA06  § 30000 218513 2,053 167
TaLAR THIEIT
58,154 TR, L35
6,682 th,EE2
2455, 164 1050, 160 30,004 STLIRD 3,950,715
30638 467 A58 467
1.[#3{4'."'? 2024 479
59044 - = - 5 6RO, MG
e (3% 1515950 o401 s
07,924 (26,704 RO0LO5E 1,124,657
LEREEE L,627.823 346125
1,685,280 I6ED.250
T4 436 {1,047 245) {3 B
4,3107.082 01047 248) JodRE3F 3EITERI 10,450,153
§ 12505192 % 2524 8 1ATRASS % 3IES036I S 20071004

See greomporping fades fo fhe basle fTrancial statesmants
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EXHIBIT C-1

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Heconeiliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Met Position

Jume 360, 20019

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds {Exhibat O}

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net pogition are different because:

Capital aseets yaed in governmental activities ara nog fimancial
resciirees and, therefore, ore nod reported in the funds

Cither lomp-ferm assels are not avadlable o pay current period
expenditures, and therefore, are not reported m governmental fimds

Property taxes are recognized on an accrual basts in the statement
of net position, not the modified accrual bazis

Deferred outfiows of rezources and deferred inflows of resources
that do not provide or require the use of current financial resources
re ol reported within the funds:
Deforred outflows of resources related to OPER Liabilify
Dreferred outflows of resources related 1o nef pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources related (o OPER liability
[Dreforred inflows of rescurces related to net pension labiliy

Debit sarvice payments are recognized as expenditures when due within
the funds. Prepaid debl service payments represent & reduection of the

long-termy liahilitics in the statement of net positton as follows:
Cupitil leases payable
Accrued interest on long-term obligations

Long-term liabilities are not due end poayable in the current period
i, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Loong-term liabilitses
at year end consist of:

Bonds payahle

Tax increment financing bonds poyable

Motes payable

Capital leases payable

State of Mow Hampshire revolving koan

Accrued inferest on long-term obligations
Compensated absences payable

OPED linbikity

Net pension fability

Estimated liabality for landfill postclosure care coats

et Position of Governmental Activities {Exhilii A)

See accomparying notes fo thie basic fnanciol slafemenis

[

5 10,430,353

15,530,145

179,618

2,024,479

260,852
2,139,704

(3,797}

(1,013,708)

(77,537)
{18,895)

(8,787.415)
{4,700.056)
(152.502)
(1,845,656)
{30,000
(246,056)
{645,866)
(3,305,847)
(11,909.219)
(120.000)

§ I7.608,557



EXHIBIT [}

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Htatement of Revenoes, Expesdiheres and Changes in Fand Balanees

Governmenial Fonds

Fior the Year Ended June 30, 105%

Rirvenpis:

Texes

Lkenses and permit:
Imserpovermmesiil

Charpes Far services

Intzress and wvestmani foome
Miscatan oo

Tunel Revemics

Eapundibs,

Current opamlions:
{raneral gosermmens
Fuhlic sateby
Alparl Aviation wrier
Highays amd ghieis
Smitation
Health and welfare
Culinre and recrestinn
Lerservation

Capital guthiy

Thid sgrvics:

Friscipal retinzmen
breresi mod fiscal charges
Toinl Expendinres

Friazan rivenee v (et ) Gxpidimines

Oithor financing soumnes [ uses )
Procecds from copimd lease

Prceeds from Seale revolving e famds

Transfers in
Transfors oul

Totel other financing sources (nses)

Mel chage i fund halneos

Fund helances {defic} ar heginning of vesr, & restafad

Fund hatinces {deficat) o ond of yoar

[onamHnesm

Tax Inexemeiil Wi or Toisl
Tenernl Finmmsing "ot canl Cvermminisal Crvermmmen bl

Fund Framd Funds Funds Funds
& T N B b ke 5 EEL R ¥ 280 i (R
2,391 47 I37. 656 2519127
| 65052 E50.482 1,716,534
LS 41 {Eiek]] 1, 145470
122 8% ] £ 043544 28 10 FEL TS
214,565 H& 12,159 1113549 RES TXT
16071198 302,861 306, Tl 1200416 18,180,774
I 5ATREE 3R 4150 12,057 13 430 3 kX s
5001374 IR R K14, 300
65,521 0210 126411
1005 956 41,627 [, I8% 505 4 F1E TR
1EX 810 183 510
IE42EG fi, 150 [[iiek] fleeEis]
1851434 3,025 65,205 10 A1E
£.590 1.590
I0d50 0450
190l AR 000 5520 1 344 %K
FEL004 235600 d4h EEE QRO
15 013 189 BE3GITT 23,033 | 567970 1B 450 S5
47506 (253,606 2R3,671 {347.444) (265,793}
T A1) a4 A
14,547 14 3957
51,730 1,730
147834 IET 590 312713 THE 13T
190,743} [ERREEN {LEe.2a0 (785 850)
{46425} IE7. S0 L2503 227,180 12411
{58 5200) 11T 147,738 {E20 T4 Az bk
4 455 8067 C1AE] D%y 5 304 ga7 1617755 191 367 715
§ 4TMI 5 [R5 5 S6e6i 5 3aitam i 53

See aocompanying nofes o the basic financial slalements
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EMXHIATT D=1

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Reconcilintion of the Statement of Revenues, Expendifures
and Changes in Fund Balanoes of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

Por the Year Ended Jane 30, 2019

Mt Clange 18 Fusd Balances = Ciovemmenisl Funds (Exhibit I3
Amounis reporiesd for goverrmaental actividies in the statement of activities are different becauae:

Liovernmental funds report eapital oullays ps expenditures, Howewer, in the stafement of activitics, the
cosl of thoge assets is allocafed gver their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This i5 the
amound by which depreciation exceeded capiial outloyg in the curment period,

Revenues in the statement of activities that do nod provide cusrent financial resourcss are aot reportad
a3 revenues in the funds,

Repayment of principal on kng=term obligstsons is an expenditure in the governmentad funds, but the
repayment feduces long-Lerm Tiabilities i the stalement of et poaition. Repayments in the gurrent
vanr are o4 follows:

Principal pald o geneeal oSlization bonds
Pringipal paid on tox increment fnancing bonds
Principal paid on aotes payable

Principal paid on capitol feases payable

Praceeds Tram the jasuance of long-ternn oblignticns are an olher fnnnemg seaice n the fends, bl
Inerense long-term Habiliiles in te staternent of net positlon. Proceede B the cusrent vear ane a3 follows:
Proceeds: from note issuance
Preceeds from capital lense
Proceeds frem Stale revolving loan funds

Curvernmenizal fends cnly report the dsposal of asseds e the exbent proceeds ame received lor the sale.
In the statement of activities, a gain o s s veporbed for esch dispasal. This is the amount of the loss
a1 dispraed caplial assets reduced by the scual procecds recelved Trsm the disposal.

Crrvermmental [ends report the effect of bond isseance premiums when debd is first issued, wheress
these smounds wre amortizesd in the sintement of activities over the life of the related deb,

Lt the: statement of sotivities, inteneal 3 aceraed on cutstanding Feag-term obligations whereas in
poveramental fusds, an Inbereat expesditiee (3 reported when due,

Revenues in the govermnments] fund finansial statements that reduce long-term psseis recorded on fhe
statement of ret positicn are naot reported s reverues in the siatement of sctivities

Lo gxpenses reported in the statement of asivities do not regudie the use of current flnanclal resources
and, thesoline, are nol reporled a5 expenditurs |n governmecital Tunds. Thess expenses are (rom the
Telerwing activities:

Compensated absences
Landfill postclosure core cosls

overnmental funds report OPER anxd 'Fl,'.'l1$i|:|r.| contribullcns as u.r:l‘rEnlﬂl.I.l.nl'_'l.. iiwrwr:r, i the staternent
of setivities, OPER and pension expense reflects the change in the CFED Hability and net penabon
Habiliey and reluted deferred outflows and lnflows of resources, and does not requing thie use of
cutrent financlal rescurces. This e the amount by which OPEB and pension expense differed from
OFER and pension comtributions in the current period,

Mt changes in OPEH
Net changes in pension

Change in Net Position of Covernmental Activities (Exhibit B)

S aecompanving woles fo the basic financial statemeniz
L]

5 GiZ, 618

iT47,081)

(299,869

Ta7.184
F20, 008D

aT,50
382,959

(50,7300
{296,523}
{14,987}

¢ 18,9660
15,853
17153

{40,967)

{19.016)
1,000

(328.530)
L164,721)

§ (142,225



EXHIBIT E

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPEHIRE
Sistement of Mel Position

Frogrietury Funds

Jome 30, 2019

ASEETS
Ciarrent Assets;
Cash nnd mash equivalents
[nvestments
Avcounts reeeivablo, nel
Duie fronm alier govermmednls
Dhui fronm otker Tuods

Tatal Currenn Asseis

ManCurrend Assels;
[3ug fram ather gavermmenis
Capital ssels:
Mon-depreciahle capitn] nesets
Deprecinble capital pasets, pes
Tranl Momeurrem Aszes
Total Assets

DEFERRELD OLIFLOAWS OF RESDURCES
Caplorred autflosws relaied wo OPER
Crefurred oautilows relaied to pension
Total Deferrad Ouifiows of Besouress

LEARILITIES
Currerit Lanhilicles:
Abeaia i yabde
Agerum| experses
T £o odhar fursds
Currest porisoi of bonds peyvable
Currest pirtisan ol cipital koo puayable
Curmit porlion of comparsaled absemes payabile
Tital Curment Liabdliics

Mimneurrinl Liakiliges:
Bands payable
Capital lessos payable
State of Mow Hamgpshire revalving loem
Campersalad shiences piyahle
OFER Enbdlity
Ml pemsion Bobality
Talnl Momoameat Lisbilities
Tolnl Lizhifities
DEFERRETE INFLOWS OF RES(ATRCES
Deferved inflows related to OFEB
Deleriod miloves related b pensdon
Tatal Deberred lilfows of Resooioes

MET POSITHON
Mel fmeestment in caplial aseets
Linresiricied
Tonak Met Posilios

See qocompanying mofey fo the havic financiol sateaents

Buslrcs-iype Actlvitles

7

Monmeagar
Waler Epwor Iropristery
Fumd Fund Fand Tataks

§F 43003 8 21346 8 4000 § 356,305
2132331 5202411 146,671 7,481,343
E17.13% ASOGTT a4 1,668,250
1229 TH.642 97,571
23,693 1445 27,140
125,601 11,552 141,055
3554954 A, 366,073 131053 10,272,083
185,60k GE1. 743 B33, H7
L.214,924 1,008,774 o, Bih 3,113,564
9042119 15207 338 L2, Hish 24,372,311
LO405,647 14,5400 B49 1,121,733 L8420 2T
13,960, 6H X3 4674022 1,272, 77 38701310
L0 £53 0BT 21,201
5,257 56,125 121418
75,144 G032 - 142,710
%51 28059 2,752 G0LT14
33,736 ™.210 1,520 Iz5916
Bo7.532 1134 ST, A0
218,541 S3LI8T TG, 728
15049 32,539 ST4628
Hi 1,520 3.9
L.196.83% TUE E49 4,672 2000360
2E25458 3340,040 63,91
b6, 438 103,554 165,985
174,48 AUSLOT 274725
21443 13,683 LR 8 |
174 44D 204,508 3rahag
E R 111333 675,752
1,426,465 467,147 . ___B300sL2
4,823,504 5471094 B X -V 10300972
[ T0el 204
31085 28213 i3, 198
3 100 29,313 3404
946 448 I148E A0 1121732 19,556,824
__ AnLase ___ 6543968 146,363 gariann
i 9178944 5 1BO3LSTS § 126113 i 2R4TenM



EXHIRIT F

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSIIRE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Med Position
Proprietary Fimds

Far the Wear Endex] Jure 30, 2019

Bausiness-type Activilies
HMoanasjor
Waier Bewer Propriclary
Operating revenine:
Charges for services £ L9331 0§ 233kAe 0 % JHR1F & AsTETO
Piscalianenus b P 1 209,038 250,354
Total pperating revenues 2,079,047 2,747,644 33,013 4. B65, 514
Crperaling expensas:
Pemoaine] servioss 4¥3 T6T 523,045 |H6412
Cantracianl services 415,167 T3 7T 170240
Pegpnin amd cnsdntensnes 178,573 149 ZRF 5,384 133,842
Adminisration 112243 121848 IL37) 245,643
Litilities 16,385 | 1%, 5494 171589 | T2, 568
Dicprecistion I, T, 188 3,200 074,713
Mliscellanoous 103,703 s, 25 75 2,207
Tooinl DP:IH‘ET[E gupenses l,?lﬁ'.,ﬂ'." %.«‘Eﬁ.'i"ﬁ'.r 34,009 4,3 H-.ll'.ini!
Oiperating income 368, FRD 230,847 T4 H30.8TL
Non-ppersting income (expensesh
Imlergiraermmenial révenus 26,1349 26,334
Imlerest mewenus 34,751 21,012 Lin 180,335
Imerest caponag {113,489 (84,625} (198,114}
Tatal sor-mperating income (expenses) (33399 37,387 3,572 B.560
Ineome before fransfers and capital condribuions 136,THE JIE2R4 1,366 £39.431
Tranzfiers in A08I% J0Hz8
Capilal contribuian 19,539 19,534
i hame in et poalthon 136,78E iz an 351935 09,738
‘Tolal Net Pasition ai beginning ol year H.R4Z 163 17,604,752 1,232 920 27,769,833
Tirtal Net Pasition st ead of year £ oaTEMe § IR03ZSIS F 12eE115 § 28ATOEN

S aoccmpanplag notes fo the basle fnavcial stafements
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EXHIBIT G

CITY OF CLAREMAONT, NEW HAMPEHIRE
Sigtement of Cash Flows

Froprietary Funds

For the Vear Ended June 30, 2014

Casly Bowa from opensting activitios
Ciagh received from cusfomens
Oher cpermting crash recsqis
Cash paad 10 suppliers
Cash pand 10 cmployees
Mot cnsh provided (vaed) by opersing asinaies

Cah Miovws from noncapital fmnncing noiviiss:
Progecds from other govemnments
Mt cash provided for noncapilal finencsg ootivilies

Cash flovs froen capiial financing activilics
Purchames of capdinl asses
Capital contributims
Tranatier fram othuer funds
Procezids from Siate revalving loan fipds
Frincipal poid on bomds payabis
Principal paid on capital leases payabls
Inlreat puaid an fomg-term dei
Wt pash (usal) e cnpdinl livandcng mlvimes

Cosh Flows frons Imesting Activilies;
[mierest om iovestments
Mel cush prowided by nvesimg aclivitiss

Bet incroass (decrease} m cash ond cosh eguivalonis
Cash and cash squisvulents al boginming, of yee
Cnih nnd sask squivnling at end of yess

Heconilialion af nperating income (0 wel cazh
provided (used] by apermimg acivitics:
Oiperating bncoims
Adjustments o reconcile operaling incoms: ta
net sk prosidad (used) by operating activitiss:
Dipprecation eRpEnsED
Changy in defierred ouiflows mlabed to0 0P ER
Chnnge in deferred outflows relabed o pension
Chinnge in deferred infiows relaled o OPER
Change in deferred infloms relmed o pension
Champes in assels ond linhiibies
Accounis recenabio, nel
[Evemiiney
Aceounts prynbh
Agcrued expenses
et pension Liabidaty
et cash provided (ascd) by opermling actvitks

Sapplemenial disclosure of non-cush iranssctions:
Faorgiveniad of kong-lerm debi primedps

Busmess-iype Activifies
Monimajor
W e Sy PFropristomy
Eund Fumnid Eund Toeals
¥ 1,955,062  F 244197 O . £ {4,683 40%
640 17,702 12,301
{1,030 ARS) (1,431,700 (42.0549) (2,513.244)
(288 358) 7 (566,697)
631 909 S 41 {1,405 1028048
26,339 16,334
26,339 - - 16,339
(%28, TH3) {10147} (91,274) {2,114, 7763
Q4,488 4444
ELeR: e J0.R2e
35,154 561,944 5970938
(333,067 i 369 48T) (9025540
128,395 35,614) {4, D
(117,803 {85,155 (203, 162Y
(1,372 594) {1, B4R T4} (B0 A4 TS {LARTORE)
54,741 23012 1.5m [ 4EL331
F4,751 23 pla 3,572 | RO 338
(59,895) 72,5408 (10, 384) (647,367)
_L3T954R 5,444 L& 21000 £,034, 0%
£ 1,719,553 i 5517060 -5 150,631 3 7387341
R LA £ mowmT % T 5 RS0LATH
70,327 701,188 1,200 1,0, N5
{5.654) 16,325) (H1.BES)
14,32 15,574 19,006
[ 1460] (138} (284}
3,302 19.517 1ZR1%
(119,295 {37,960 PR (L3754
(4599 EREE] 284
DFER )] LK A4 (23,0000
1.4M 6,905 (8,080) 246
%502 I8, T8 47,29
_{534T {22.314) (27,661)
§ A3L000 § o] ¥ a0y 3 LAdEOd3
£ I § - § - I L)

Soe aocompanyirg motes io e basic finanoial slatemmis
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EXHIBIT H
CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statement of Fiducinry Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019
Provate-
Purpose Agency
Trust Funds Funds
ABESETH

Cash and cash equivalents 5 74,008
Investments £ 11,306,306 8,123,138

Total Assets __ 11,306,306 5 8,198,133

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources *
LIABILITIES

Duse to other governments ¥ B154,484
Deposits 43,548

Total Liabilities - $ 8,198,133

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources o
MET POSITION

Held in trust 11,306,306

Tatal Net Position $ 11,306,306

See aoccompanying mafes fo the basie franeial stalements
i0



EXHIBIT I

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Met Position

Fiduciary Funds
Jure 30, 2019

ADDITICNS:
Confributions:
Private donations
Tetal Contributions

Investment earnings:
[rteresi
Realized gaing on investments
Met increase in the falr value of Investments
Todal Investment Eamings
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits
Administrative sxpenses
Total Deductions
Change: in met position

Met position - beginning of year, as restated
Met position - end of year

See gecoumparying Hotex 1o the hasie financtal siotements

1

Priviste-
Purpose
Trust Funds

5 52
32

238,008
416,514
261 856

419,578

919,430

268,218
3T HA]
326,164

593,761

10,713 {45
5 11,306,306



CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Claremont, New Hampshire conform to aecounting policies
generally accepted in the United States of America for local governmental units, except as indicated
hereinafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Claremont, New Hampshire (the City) was incorporated as a town in 1764 and as a city in
1947, The City operates under the City Council/City Manager form of government and performs local
governmental functions as authorized by State law.

The financial statements include those of the varous departmenis governed by the Cily Council and other
officials with financial responsibility. The City has no other separate organizational units, which meet
eriteria for inclugion in the financial statements as defined by the Governmental Aceounting Standards
Board (GASE),

Basix of Presentation

The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed level
of financial information,

1, Govermnment-Wide Finnncial Statements;

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the City as 4
whole, These statements include the financial activities of the primary government, cxcept for fiduciary
funds., The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-
tvpe activities of the City at vear end. The statement of activitics presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmental and business-
type activities. Direct expensos are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or
department and therefore clearly identifiable to n particular function. Program revenues include charges
paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are
restricled to meeting the operational or capital requirements of o particular program and interest earned on
grants that is required to be used to support & particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City. The comparison of direct expenses with
program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the City.

2, Fuind Financial Stalemenits;

During the year, the City segregates transactions refated to certain City functions or activities in separate
funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund fineocil
statements are designed 1o present financial information of the City at this more detailed level, The focus
of governmental snd proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds, Each major fund is



CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES T'O BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

presented in a separute column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column., The
fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Acconnting

The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined as a fiscal
and secounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three catepories of funds:
governmental, proprictary, and fiduciary,

1. Governmental Funds;

CGovernmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which
they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned (o the fund from which they will be paid, The
difference between governmental fiund assefs and deferred outilows of resources, and liabilities and
deferred mflows of resources is reported as fund balance. The following are the City's major
govemmental funds:

The Gemerad Fund s ihe main operating lund of the City and 15 used (o account for all Anancial resources
except those required 10 be accounted for in another fund,

The Dowmiown Toax Increment Finoncing Fund i3 a debt service fund that accounts for the financial
transactions related to the City's parking garage,

The Permanent Funds account for the financial transactions related to resources that are legally restricted
to the extent that only camings and not principal may be used for purposes that suppot the City's

programs.
2. Proprietary Funds:

Proprictary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net position,
financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise or intermal service. The
City has no internal service funds, The following are the City”s major proprietary funds;

The Warer Fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertainmg 10 the Cily"s wiler opefalions,

The Sewer Fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to the City™s wastewater treatment
operations.

The Water, Sewer and nonmajor proprietary funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed
and operated in a manner similar 10 private busingss enterprises. The stated intent is that the oost (e
expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the residents on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user charpes.
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3. Filuciary Funds;

Fidutiary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund category
iz split into two classifications: private purpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to
account for assets held by the City under a trust agreement for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments and are therefore not available to support the City’s own programs. The City maintains
numerous private purpose trusts which aceount for monies designated to benefit individuels within the
City. The City's agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the
measurement of results of operations. The City's agency funds account for capital reserve funds and
scholarship funds of the Claremont School District and escrow deposits.

Measurernieni Focns
1. Government-Wide Finaneial Siatements:

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the cconomic resources measurement
focus, All assets, deferred outfllows of resources, linbilities, und deferred inflows of resources associated
with the operation of the City are included on the Statement of Net Position,

2. Fund Financial Statemenis:

All governmental funds are accounted for usmg a flow of corrent financial resources measurement focus.
With this meazurement focus, only current asseis, deferred cutllows of resources, current liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet, The statement of revonues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (Le., revenues and other Nnancing
sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing wses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activitics of the government-wide finuncial
statements are prepared, Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with
brief explanations to betier identify the relationship between the government-wide staiements snd the
statements for governmental Tunds,

Like the government-wide statements, the proprietery fund type is nccounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net position.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents increases (e, revenues) and
decrenses (e, expenses) in total net position. The statement of cash flows provides information about
how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

The private purpose trust fund is reported using the economic resources measurement focus.
Basis of Accouniing

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on
the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds alse use the accrual basis of accounting, Governmentul funds
use the modified accrual basis of accounting, Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of
accounting arise in the recognition of revenwe and in the presentation of expenses versus expendituncs,
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I. Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual busis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue i5 recorded in the fiscal wear in which the resources are measurable and become available
Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be
collected soom encugh thereafier to be used (o pay labilities of the current fiscal vear. For the City,
availuble means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal vear end.

MNon-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in retum,
include property taxes, granis, entitlements and donations, On an accrual basis, revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are lovied (see Note 13). Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal vear in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resousces
are required o be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; mutching requirements, in which the
City must provide local rezources to be used for & specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in
which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified sccrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at fiscal vear-end; property taxes, charges for services, and interest on investments.

Licenses and permils and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received m cash because
they are generally not measurable until actually received.

Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are recorded as advances
from grantors. On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within
the available pericd are reported as deferred inflows of resources.

2. Expenses/Expenditures:

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred, The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources

{expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting pericd in
which the related fund liability is incurred, if measureble. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and

amortization are not recognized in governmental funds.

Budgetary Data

The City's budget represents functional appropriations as authorized by the City Council. The Council
may transfer funds between operating categories as deemed necessary. The City adopts its budget under
State regulations, which differ somewhat from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America in that the focus is on the entire governmental unit rather than on the basis of fund

types.

State law requires balanced budgets but permits the use of beginning fund balance to reduce the property
tax rate. During the budgetary process, the City authorized the use of $1,063,590 from fund balance to
offset appropriations. An additional $3500,000 of fund balance was applied to reduce the mx rate
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Supplemental appropriations passed during the year were also partially funded from fund balance in the
amount of 383,600, Unexpended supplemental appropriations of $98,925 were carried forward from the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 for a net combined use of fund balance of 1,746,115,

Fnvestments

Investments are stated at their fair value in all funds. Certificates of deposit with a maturity of greater than
ninety days from the date of issuance are included in investments.

Accounrs Recefvable

Charges for services billed during the current fiscal year and prior and uncollected at June 30, 2019 are
recoided as receivables net of reserves for estimated uncollectibles of $54,323 and $95.123 in the Water
Fund and Sewer Fund, respectively.

Taxes Recefvalie

Taxes levied during the current fiscal year and prior and uncollected at June 30, 2019 are recorded as
receivables net of reserves for estimated uncollectibles of $612,000.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit pernods bevond June 30, 2019 are recorded as
prepaid items,

fnventary

O government-wide financial stafements, inventories are preseated al the lower of cost or market onoa
first-im, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

Caplind Assels

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the
government-wide statement of neil position, but are not reported in the govemmental fund financial
Slatements.

All capital aszets including infrastructure are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated
for additions and retirements during the vear. Donated capital assets are recorded at their acquisition
valuezs as of the date received, The City mainfains a capitalization threshold of £5.000, The Citv's
infrastructure consists of roads, bridges, sidewalks, water purification and distribution svstem, sewer
collection and treatment system, and similar items. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add o the value of the assel or materially extend an assei’s life are
not. Interest incurred during the construction of proprietary capital assets is also capitalized,

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in process are depreciated. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining uscful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for mfrastructure
were estimated based on the City's historical records of necessary improvements and replacement.
Deprociation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

I
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Descripti y
Infrastriciure 10-50
Buileings snd improvements 20-40
Vichicles, equipment and furnishings 5-25
Itdangible assets 5

Compensafed Absences and Retirement Benefits

Employees carn vacation and sick leave as they provide services. Provision is made in the annual budget
for vacation and sick leave. Pursuimt to City personnel policy and collective bargaining agreements,
employees may accumulate (subject fo certain limitations) wnused sick and vacation leave and, upon
retirement, resignation or death will be compensated for such amounts at current rates of pay.

For governmental fund financial statements, compensated absences and accrued retirement benefits are
reported as linbilities and expenditures as payments come due each period upon the occurrence of
emplovee death or retirement. The entire compensated absence lability is reported on the government-
wide financial statements.

Baond Premitm

Bond premiums are amonized sz a component of mterest expense over the lives of the related bonds
using the effective interest rate method. Bonds payable are reported in the accompanying financial
statements gross of any applicable unamortized bond premium,

Accrued Liahilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In general, povernmental fund payables and scerved liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in
a timely manner and in full from current resources are reported as obligations of the funds, However,
compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities in the fand
linancial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current fiscal year.
Creneral obligation bonds and other long=term obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are
recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements when due.

FPoxtemployment Benefite Other Than Pensions (OFPEE)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OFPER, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the New
Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS) OPEB Plan and additions to/deductions from NHES's fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by NHRS. For this purpose,
MHRS recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefil terms,
Investments are reported at fair value, except for non-registered commingled funds valued at net asset
value (NAV) as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.
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Pensioins

For purposes of measuring the net pension linbility, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of rezources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
New Hampshire Retirement System (MNHRS) and additions to/deductions from NHRES's fiduciary net
pozition have been detennined on the same basis as they are reported by NHES, For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of emplovee contributions) are recognized when duwe and payable in
aceordance with the benefit terms.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
pocumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances on any bomowings wsed for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets, Met position is reported as restricted when there
are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legistation adopted by the City or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, prantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets
or the restricted components of net position.

The City’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position is avaitable,

Fund Balance Palicy

The City has segregated fund balance into five classifications: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed,
Assigned, and Unassigned. These components of fund balance are defined as follows:

o Nonspendable Fund Balance: Amounts that are not in 8 spendable form or are required to be

maintained intact,

o Restricred Fund Balance: Amounts constrained to specific purposes stipulsted by exiernal
resource providers (such as grantors) or through ensbling legislation. Restrictions may  be
changed or lifted only with the consent of the resource providers or enabling legislation.

o Committed F Bafonce: Amounts constrained o specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the City's highest level of decision making authority (City Council). Commitments may
be changed or lifted only by the City Council taking the same formal action that imposed the
constraint originally. Any committed funds would go back to the Geneeal Fund if the
commitment is dizsolved. The City Coungil’s actions must either be approved or rescinded, ns
applicable, prior to the last day of the fiscal year for which the commitment is made. The amount
subject to the constraint may be determined in the subsequent period.

o dssipned Fund Balgnee: Amounts that the City intends to be vsed for specific purposes. For all
governmental funds other than the General Fund, any remaining positive amounts are to be

classified as “assigned”. The City Council expressly delegates this authority to the City Manager
or his designee.

I8
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o Unaspigned Fund Balfgrce: Amounts that are the residual classification of the General Fund and
includes all amounts not contained in other classifications, Unassigned amounts are technically
available for any purpose. Any deficit fund balance of another governmental fund is also
classified as unassigned.

Spending Priovitization

The City's policy is 1o first apply restricted resources when expendibures are incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. When expenditures are incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications may be applied,
committed resources are to be applied ficst, followed by assigned and unassigned.

Lreficit Fund Balance

At vear end, if any of the special revenue funds has & deficit unassigned fund balance, the City Manager is
authorized to transfer [unds from the General Fund o cover the deficit, providing the General Fund has
the resources to do 2o,

Minforn Level of Unaasiened Fund Balance

In accordance with the City's fund balance policy, the City will strive to maintain an unassigned fund
balance in its General Fund equal to 5-15% of the budgeted General Fumd operating expenditures each
fiscal vear.

Fnterfund Activity

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/
expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement
for repayment are reported as interfund transfers, Interfund transfers are reported as other financing
sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in the proprietary fimds.
Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid
for them are not presented on the financial statements,

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues sre those revenues that are penerated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. For the water fund, sewer fund, and nonmajor proprictary fund, these revenues are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses, which include depreciation on eapital
assets, are necessury costs incumed to provide the service that is the primary activity of the proprietary
fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
EXPENses,
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Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Linited States of America require management (0 make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclesures, Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates,

NOTE 2—CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The City pools its cash resources for the povernmentul and proprietary funds. Cash applicable to a
particular fund is reflected as an interfund balance. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash
and cazh equivalents consist of the following;

Monmajor
Waler Sewar Proprietary
Fund Eund Fund Titals
Coh £ 43095% £ 421344 £ 4.0 £ B5G305
Investments in Kew Hampehire Public
Depazit Imvestment Poal 2133 33) 5202411 146,621 TAB] 363
Due Trom otber Tunds 2316935 3445 27.140
Due to ather funds (B67.332) (110,134) (977466)
Totals § 1,719,653 £ 5,517,068 £ 150621 £ 7387342

NOTE 3—DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2019 are classified in the accompanying fmancial statements as
follows:

Statement of niet position:

Conh mitd eash souival enis £ 6255172
Imestimernts 13,630,073
Statement of fiduciary nat position:
Cazh and cash equivalents 74,5905
Ivestments | 9225 344
Total depozits and Imvestments £ 39389684

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2019 congist of the following:

Cash on hand % 3,707
Depasits with financial institations 8,326 460
Investments 33052517

Total deposits snd investments § 39.389.684

The City's investment policy for governmental and proprictary fund types requires that deposits and
investments be made in New Hampshire based financial Institutions that are participants in one of the
federal depository insurance programs. The City limits its investments to demand deposits, short-term
governmental securities or obligations, certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements in accordance
with Mew Hampshire State law (RSA 48:16) or the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool
{NHPFDIP), an extemnal investment pool. Responsibility for the investments of the Trust Funds is with the
Board of Trustees.
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Credic Risk

Generaliv, credit risk s the risk that an issuer of an invesiment will not fulfFll its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of & rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating crganization,

The City's investment policy addresses credit risk by limiting investments fo the safest types of securities
and diversifying the investment portfolio. The City limits its investments to LS. Treasury securities,
ghort-term obligations of U.S. Government agencies. money market sccounts, certificates of deposit,
repurchase agreements, and the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool,

The investment policy of the Trustees of Trust Funds states that equities and convertible securities should
represent & minimum of 40%% of the total portfolio, with a similar minimum of 40% in fixed income
securities. The fixed income investments shall include U.S. government issues and other bonds rated “A™
or higher,

The following is the actual rating at vear end for each investment type:

Rating s of Year End
Investment Type Far Wl g A i i gl Baled
Corporute bonds 5 442023 3 LTI 5 MI460 § 19921584
Bond mubual fands 300,744 % 3300, 744
Mlosey markel mufual funds 276,004 2600
Stare vegiment poal 5.901, 708 5 9061908

5179648 § 2337777 § 99601708 % MS460 G 1992584 § AS5TRHIE

Tnterest Rare Rivk

Interest cate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment, Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest mtes. The City's investment policy for povernmental and proprietary funds
regarding interest rate risk indicates that safety and liquidity arc the primary objectives, The City
minimizes its interest rate risk by maintaining & portfolio that is sufficiently liquid to enable the City o
meet all operating requirements as reasonably anticipated. A portion of the portfolio may be placed in
money market mutoal funds, repurchase agreements, or local government investment pools which offer
same-day liquidity for short term funds.

The Trustees of Trust Funds investment policy states that maturities of fixed income investments should
generally be no longer than 10 years from the date of purchase, except for selected mortgage backed
securities. Equity securities selected for investment shall be of high quality and be liquid.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s invesiments to market intercst rate
Muctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of investments by maturity:
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Remaining Matuwrity {In Years)
Corporate bonds £ 4426223 % 649360 % 29621331 5 B14.730
LLS, Treasury notes 1,714,155 99,344 BE54.058 760,753
Bond mutual funsds 3,300,744 1010719 27290025

§ 9441122 § T804 $ 4.826910 $3.865.508

Custodinl Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not
be returmed to 1. The custodial credit risk for investments 15 the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterpary o a transaction, a government will not be able o recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party,

In sccordance with the Cily"s investment policy, all deposits shall be fully collateralized with the delivery
of LLS. government obligations, U.5. government agency obligations, or obligations of the State of New
Humpshire having o value at least 100% of the cash deposit in each case.

Of the City's deposits with finencial institutions at year end, 5812,762 was collateralized by securitics
held by the bank in the bank’s name. As of June 30, 2019, City imvestments in the [ollowing mvestment
types were held by the same counterparty that was used to buy the securities,

Reported

Tesime Ao g
Eaquity securities 513,380,593
Corporate bomds 4,426,223
U5, Tressury imotes 1,714,155
Bond mutual fumnds 3,300,744
Money market marhzal funds 276,054

5 Ill:l".}'?iﬁﬂg
Trvesimend in NHPDIP

The City is a voluntary participant in the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Fool (NHFDIF), an
external investment pool. The WHPDIP is not registered with the United States Securities and Exchanpe
Commission as an investment company. The WHPDIP was created by state law and is administered by a
public body of state, local and banking officials. Financial statements for the NHPDIP can bo accessed
through the MHPDIP's website al waw NHPDTP. com.

The City’s exposure to derivatives is indirect through its participation in the NHPDIP. The Cit's
proportional share of these derivatives is not available. The fair value of the position in the investment
pool is equal 1o the value of the pool shares,

Fuair Villue Meavurements of Investments
The City categorizes the fair valoe measurements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy

establizshed by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The fair value hierarchy
categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used for fair value measurement into three levels as follows

{in order of priotity):
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o Lovel 1 fapuits - Inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilitics that the Town has the ability to access at the measurement date.

o  Level 2 fuputs - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for assets or liabilities either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active,

o [Level 3 fupes - Significant unobservable inputs.
As of June 30, 2019, the City"s investments measurad at fair value, by type, were as follows:

Fuir ¥Wahes Meadurensonis Using:

Qrxled prices
in sclive Signilficant Sijpralesint
markets for chsprvabln unobaervabibs
idendical aszals s s
Description (Lewel 1) (Lewel 13 LLgvee] 33
Investments by falr valee kevel;
Dot securifies:
Corporats band h 1 4 42012 5 Al s
L5 Tressary nolss 1,7 4,053 1,714,153
Bond mubual lunds W04 F 3200,744
Equiny etk I]-IEHEIE'EIEI L:'._?,uggg.}
£ XRNTIY O OF lacHI33T % 6, ]403TR 8§ -

Bond mutual funds and equity securities classified as Level | are valued using unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for those securities. Corporate bonds and ULS. Treasury notes classified as Level 2 are
valued using either a bid evaluation or 2 matrix pricing technique. Bid evaluations may include markel
guotations, vields, maturities, call fegtures, and ratings. Mairix pricing is used to value securities based
on the securities relationship to bench-mark quoted prices.

NOTE 4—CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is 4 summary of changes in capital assets in the governmental activities:

Balance Baknce
Giovermmentz! scthvithea:
Capitn] nssets nod depreainted:
Lamd 3 1 GE2 769 3 1 8
Inizmgihle asreis EL HEECEE
Comstrucibon in process 5410 5 411,514 5 {454&] R, 166
Tozal capitel ass=ts not boing deprecistod 2618, & 411,584 {434,839, 2,594,935
Dher capisl aseis
Infrastrusciume 20504, 108 1,334,119 308548227
Building= amd inmprovenssits 11,586,568 11,585, 503
Vihlckes, equipment and furnbbings 12,663,539 3E107R {347,704 12698713
Infnnginle nssols 345,600 35500
Tokal ather caplinl nspets st historical cost S3EFLHES 1,737,157 (347,744 59,213,268
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Balnce BHalanee
G018 Addiiong Eeducticre SOOI
Loss pocumiilsied depregintion for
Infrastrucis: {7 H9T19 {ETOIER) {8, 767,007}
Bralkdisgs amd insprovements {3,136, 180} {500,519 {3,636,595)
Wehicles, equipment and furmbhings {#,121.037) {1063, 106) I2R.TTR {9,§55,365)
intangilk asseis {1 1857 (L 1HnN (LSBT}
Total accmmubated depresistion 20, 163805 ) {2.441,033) IZBTTR ___ (I3 ITEN5H)
Tedal oiher capifal asseis, nai ILASR 012 [ TO5, B6) U%E} H,EH}
Total capits] axssts, nzt b e L £ (292355 £ (473.795) 5 HEHEHE
Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:
Ceneral government § 57022
Public safety 161,549
Alrport/Aviafion center 624,744
Highwass and strewets [O74 495
Culture and recreation 523223
Tota! povernmental sofivities depreciation expense $2441.033

The balance of the assets acquired through capital leases for governmental activities as of June 30, 2019 is
as follows;

Vahicles, equipment and furnishings £3.741 675
Liess accurmilsied depreciation:
Vehicles, equipment and furmizhings (1.373,559)
£2368.116

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets in the proprictary funds;

Balbmce Haknee
2014 At Beghslions 6302019
Business-Lype activities:
Capital assel nol depreciated:
Land i 1,00k, 5 i 1.0 5
Comslruction in process GTAALS £ 1593250 2 214,665
Total capial assets ol berg deprecnted i 34 1,523 250 3 - 3225 564
Oiber copilal axxets:
[nfrasuciure A1 T 255 155285 41,904, 580
Buildings and soprovemenss 4 583 966 4983 565
Viehicles nd cogaipnaent 3,831,061 et ] 3,579,251
Totzl oiher capital pascts ot htoricn] cost M,HZ 238058 = 50467 827
Less accumulated depreciation form
Infraetructurs (21,047,120 (856,264 H {21,503, 334)
Ruikdngs and improvements (LIS, TR [ 100.585) . (1,149,370}
Vihicles ond equipment {2924 F01 ) (117.865) (3,042 THE)
Totul nooumuinied depreciotion (25,0000, 70} (1074, 715) - (26,005,510}
Total ether capilnl nssals, net 25,243 827 (&71.2000 = AT RET
Tivtnl cupitul ngsets, nel £ 100 Ra1 £ 6710 ] - 5 17595831
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Depreciation was charged to proprietary funds as follows:

Water fund £ 370,327
Bewer fund T01,188
MNonmajor proprietasy fund 3,200

Total Business-lype activities deprociation expense § 1074715

The balance of the assets acquired through capital leases in the proprietary funds as of June 30, 2019 is s
follows:

Vehicles and equipiment % 324398
Less accumulated depreciation:

Vehicles and equipment (B5,17%)

3 239&”

NOTE 5—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Greneral Long-term (Obligations

‘The changes in the City”s long-term oblipations for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Bakinge Bakanee Due Within
VIPME  Addiigns  Reducfions 6302019 Oue Year
Ciosgrneneemal nelivilazs:
Bonds pavable 5 CHART UHE (767184 ¥ HAWE0E & TIT25H
Unamorbed bond pramiom 104,754 {14,143 ihll
Teaal Bonds pavable 9568747 - § = {THLEIT) H BT A5 T 258
Tox increment financing bonds payabla 52040 (KN { 20,000 4 R0, K] 52000
Unsmartized band preminm 20,740 (4,740 205
Total tax increment (nancing honds payabie BE34. 790G = {524, 7400 A& MHLISG S2000
Motes payahle 158136 50,730 {57154} 152,512 68,35
Capilal leases puvable 1.554.381 200,523 (IHE 248 1545 6% 2e4 T2
State of Mew Hompshim revalving ksn 15013 14,587 KA L]
Compenanted absences GanEH 34,0510 (35,015 4 5, B b, 557
Tl pooemmental scthvilies BITSIIo05 B #2284 R (LTHIGON 5 16131498 F LTIS006
Businesa-type acibvites:
Bonds payable £ TAE0AL £ (US54} 5 ATEGAES § TIOTIE
Principal forgiveness. 191,062 (2] 225} R B33
Totu] Boods payafike TReDI % - (633, TR GE3GTI9 THLTE
Cupial kases payuhle 291,622 {4, 10 227413 7638
Stage of New Hampshire revolving loan 277627 597,04 574,725
Compensaied nbsences Hir A 3508
Total husiness-type activitics 3 HIHEIEEI E :mlma ORT T2} i E:EIJ& i ﬁﬁi

Payments on the general obligation bonds, notes pavable, and capital leases of the governmental activitios
are paid out of the General Fund. Payments on the fax increment financing bonds of the governmental
activities are paid owl of the Downtown Tox Increment Financing Fund. Payments on the remaining
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CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

bonds and capital leases of the business-type activities are paid out of the Water and Sewer Funds,

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund where the employvee’s salary @ paid.

Greneral Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activities

Bonds payable at June 30, 2019 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Crganal Final Balance
Tssue Irterest Muaturity at
Amougt Rate Dt 6/30/2019
Landfill elosurs $3 468 368 3. 70% July 2022 § 661815
Streat project 3,000,000 3.75%  September 2020 400,000
Public improverments = refunding 775,625 2,004, 0% July 2020 L59 Q8%
Morth'hain Streets, Community Center
and Drapars Corner 7452400 3.00-8.125%  January 2041 6360 000
Infrastrociure improvements 1400000  2.00-4.00%  February 2031 [0 15,000
Totals 460G, 804
Add: Unamortized bond premium 0611
§ £787415

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the City, for which its full faith and credit are pledged,
and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable property located within the City™s boundaries.

Dbt service requirements to retire general obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Yiear Ending
2020 3 177,258 ¥ 30,220 £ 1097478
2021 THLSES 291,570 1,082,553
2023 518,563 263,420 TBEIB3
2023 05, D 256,194 561,194
2024 JI0,000 246,004 356,094
2025-2029 1,685,000 1,042,469 2, 727469
2030-2034 1,665,000 Ta0, 144 2395 144
2035-203%9 1,810,000 401,112 2211012
2040-2041 835,000 51,075 886975
Tirtal 8,006,804 3. 609 508 12306402
Add: Bond Premium Gl el
Total § 87R7415  $3609508  §12397013

Bonds payable at June 30, 2019 are comprized of the following individual issues:
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Criginal Balance
[szue Intarest Mudurity of
Amoumt Batg Dute GINID]
Water Fund:
2006 State Revolving Loan 24,050,000 3488 December 2026 £ 1,901,161
2005 Seste Revolving Loan 2. 298361 3.488% July 2027 [NEERE]!
3,044 292
Sewer Fund;
2008 Srate Revalving Loan 336,000 3.68K% DEcember 2027 179976
2009 Stare Revolving Loan T08.26] 3.488% Jarmsary 2028 56614
2008 Stare Bevolving Loan 2. 707,734 34889 Muigst 027 | 420,607
2009 State Fevolving Loan 422 340 3 ABRY% July 2028 221,076
2012 State Revolving Loan B10.751 1.9 i% Movermber 202 | 356,749
2014 State Revolving Loan T6T.I57T 1.940% September 2023 353 842
2017 Siate Revolving Loan Z. 146,698 1.5 0% April 2026 1314 852
Wastewater improvements - refunding 436375 2.00-4.00% July 2020 Q01T
3,802 437
$ 6915719

Dbt service requirements to retire general obligation bonds, net of principal forgiveness from the State of
Mew Hampshire to be forgiven over a period of 19 yedars from the start of the individual State Eevolving
Loan Funds of $169,833, for business-type activities at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 10, Prinzipal Inieresi Total

2020 £ 770,728 £ 141,592 £ 912320
2021 Q30,9449 |Ga8.657 1,99 606
2022 Q02,567 | 44,9240 1,47 487
2023 Hig2an | 20,6948 951,937
2024 Bdb 402 97192 43 504

2025-20249 _ 2485001 160, B9 2,645 8095
Tioral @, 766,880 833953 7600839

Add; Principai forgiveness 165,833 169833
Tl 5 6,936,719 § 833953 b 7,770,672

The State of Mew Hampshire annually reomburses the City for it share of sewer related debt service
payvmenis, For the year ended June 30, 2019, the reimbursement was §94,488 in the Sewer Fund.

Tax Increment Financing Bonds

The City has pledged a portion of future tax increment financing revenues to repay 57,661,000 in tax
increment bonds issued in July 2007 to finance infrastructure improvements within the Downiown
DHstrict, The bonds are payable solely from the tax increment financing taxes, Incremental taxes were
projected to produce in excess of 100% of the debt service requirements over the life of the bonds. For the
current fiscal vear, principal and interest paid and total tax increment fingnce revenues were $520,000 and
$236,600, respectively, During the vear ended June 30, 2019, $287,590 was transferred from the General
Fund to the Downtown Tax Increment Financing Fund 0 assist with the debt service payments,

Tax increment financing bonds payable at June 30, 2019 are comprised of the (ollowing individual issues:
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CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Crriginal Final Balance
Iszua Interest Mlaturity al

Amourd Rate Dags 302012
kil District E2722,000  £.00-5.00% August 2027 £ 2,340,000
il Dristrict 4,539,000 &4,00-5,00% August 2027 2,340,000
4,680,000
Add: Unamortized bond premium 20,054
§ 4,700,056

Debr service requirements to retire tax increment financing bonds oumtstanding at June 30, 2009 are as
follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Pringipal Interest Total

2020 ¥ 320000 § 210,600 §  T30,600
2021 520,000 185,250 705,250
2022 320000 160,550 480,530
2023 520,000 135,850 635 430
2024 320,000 111,150 631,130
3025-2028 2,080,000 197,600 2,277,600
4,680,000 1,041,040 5,681,000
Add: Bord Pramium 20,056 20,056
Total £ 4,700,056 $ 1,001,000 $ 5701056

Notes Payable

Notes payable at June 30, 2019 is comprised of the following individual issues:

Ciriginul Final Balance
Issue Inferest Marturity al
Amount Rate Date 6/30/2019
Energy improvements £ 263810 2.00% June 2021 £ 106,298
Energy improvemsnts 51,730 2.50% March 2022 46,204
b 152,502

Debt service requirements to retire notes payihle ovtstanding at June 30, 20019 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Eringipal Interest Todal
2020 b GE 390 i 3,024 B 71,423
2021 T0TTL 1,638 72409
2022 13,332 13% 13471
Total i 152 502 5 4,801 B 5'!'&12._1

The City’s outstanding notes from direct borrowings and direct placements related to governmental
sctivities of $152,502 contain provisions that in the event of default, all principal and aceroed interest
thereon shall immediately become due and pavable, The full faith and credit of the City is pledged for the
payment on the notes.
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Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations represent lease agreements entered into for the financing of vehicle and
equipment acquisitions. These contracts are subject to cancellation should funds not be appropriated to
tmeet piyment cbligations. Amounts are annvally budgeted in the applicable function.

Governmental Activitics
The following are the individual capital lcase obligations of the governmental activities at June 30, 2019:
Vehicles and equipment due n anmesal installments of

64 004, including Interast at 3.7 1%, through May 2020 i 62 583

Vehicles and equipment due in armeal instaliments of
$98,310, including intersst at 3.042%, throngh August 2022
then redoced to wmual installments of 878,316, including

inberest at 3.042%, throogh Augost 2027 o5 285

Vehicles and equipment due in anmeal installments of

554,791, including interest at 1.49%, through September 2021 139065

Yehicles and cquipment dise b armisal installments of

576,477, including interest ot 2.89%, through Scptember 2024 415,803

Equipment due inannual instaliments of $38,151, including

interest at 2.97%, through Jenwary 2026 139,553

WVehicles due inmnuoal installments of 545,827, including

interest at 3.69%, through August 2019 BG 813

“Wehicles due in annual installments of 548 477, including

interest at 3.49%, through Movember 2025 296,523
3 1,845 656

Diebt service requircments to retire capital lease obligations outstanding for governmental activities at
June 30, 2019 are as follows:

“ear Ending
June 30, Prinsipal Interest Total

2020 I 284782 § 37096 F 321878
2021 J0B.565 446,719 355,284
2022 271,830 37621 309460
2023 231478 20936 261414
2024 218,522 2T ROE 241420

2025-2028 530470 35,526 565,996
Total 3 | B45636 5 209796 $2=D5 S5l

T3] & MActivili

The following are the individual capital lease obligations of the business-type activities at June 30, 201%:

i
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Vehicles snd equipment due in annoal installmens of

217,719, including interest ot 3,71 %, through May 2020 ¥ 17.084

Viehicles and equipiment dus in annoal installments of

58,164, inchuding interest at 1 494, through September 2021 23,544

Vehicles due in annual installments of $12,735, including

interest nf 2.89%, through September 2024 69240

Equipment due in annual installmemts of 525,811, including

interest ot 3.14%, through February 2024 117,745
5 2374613

Debt service requirements to retire capital lease obligations outstanding for business-type activities at
June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Year Ending
dumg 10, Eringipal Interest Toial
2020 £ 57.628 5 6,803 £ &4,431
2021 41,701 5010 45,711
2022 42,893 B8 45,711
2023 35,057 2,591 38,548
2024 A7057 1,4%] 38,548
2025 12,377 138 12,715
Tetul ¥ 227613 5 20,071 ¥ 247684

State of New Hampshire Revolving Loan

The City has drawn $174,746 of approximately $500,000 in funds under the State of New Hampshire,
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund Program for the lead service removal project. Payments are
not scheduled o commence until the first anniversary of the scheduled completion date or the substantial
completion date, whichever is earliest. Interest is accrued at 1% during the construction period of the
project and is to be paid upon completion of the project. The City may be provided federal finnneinl
assistance whereby a portion of the borrowed funds is forgiven, The principal forgiveness will be
determined when the aggregate principal loan amount iz established and will be applied to the loan upon
the initial repayment.

The City has drawn $669.983 of approximately 5882,320 in funds under the State of New Hampshire,
Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Program for the Main Street Utility project. Payments are
not seheduled to commence unti] the first anniversary of the scheduled completion date or the substantial
completion date, whichever is carliest. Interest is accrued at 1% during the construction peried of the
project and is to be paid upon completion of the project. The City may be provided federal financial
assistance whereby a portion of the borrowed funds is forgiven, not to exceed $160,290,

The City has also drawn $59,996 of approximately $60.000 in funds under the State of New Hampshire,
Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund Program for the asset management for the wastewater and
stormwater collection systems. Payments are not scheduled to commence until the first anniversary of the
scheduled completion date or the substantial completion date, whichever is earliest, Intorest is acorued ot
1% during the construction perind of the project and is to be paid upon completion of the project, The
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City may be provided federal financial assistance whereby a portion of the borrowed funds is Torgiven,
not to exceed $60, 00K,

NOTE 6—OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Totad OPER Linbilitles, Deferred Ouwtflows of Resonrces, Deferved Tnflows of Resources and OPEB
Expense

Deferred OPER Deferred OFEB

Ciifloes Liability Inflows Expeise
Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Plan 2040, 00% 5 1,265,137 £ 4013 3 410,742
Single Employer Plan 82135 2421 698 - 205, 50
Total £382 144 £ 1684835 £ 4,013 i 616,248

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OFEB is
reflected as an increase to unrestricted net position in the amount of $278,131.

COST-SHARING MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN

Plan Descripiion

The Mew Hampshire Betirement System (NHES) administers o cost-sharing multiple-employer other
postemplovment benefit plan (OPER Plan). The OPEB Plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to
qualified retired mem bers.

The NHRS issues & publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for NHRS. That reporit may be obtained by writing to New Hampshire
Retirement Svstem at 54 Regional Drive, Concord, New Hampshire 03301 or from their website at
www.nhrs,org.

The OPEB Plan is divided into four membership types. Political subdivision emplovees, teachers and
State employoes belong to Group . Police officers and firefighters belong to Group I1 The OPEB plan is
closed to new entrants.

Benefits Provided

Benefit amounts and eligibility requirements for the OPEB Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-A:52, REA
100-A:52-a and REA 100-A:52-b), and members are designated in statute by type. The medical insurance
subsidy is a payvment made by NHRS to the former employer or its insurance administrator toward the
cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree, histher qualified spouse, and hisher certified dependent
children with a disability who are living in the household and being cared for by the retiree. If the health
itsurance premium amount is less than the medical subsidy amount, then onky the health insurance
premium amount will be paid. If the health insurance premium amount exceeds the medical subsidy
amount, then the retiree or other qualified person is responsible for paying any portion that the employer
does not pay.
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Group | bencfits are based on creditable service, age and retirement date. Group 1T benefits are based on
hire date, age and creditable service. Medical subsidy rates established by RSA 100-A:52 11 are dependent
upon whether retirees are eligible for Medicare. Retirees nol eligible for Medicare may receive a
maximum medical subsidy of $375.56 for a single person plan and $751.12 for a two person plan,
Retirees eligible for Medicare may receive 8 maximum medical subsidy of $236.84 for a single person
plan and §473.68 for a two person plan.

Funding Policy

Per REA-100:16, contribution rates are established snd may be smended by the New Hampshire State
legislature and are determined by the NHRS Board of Trustees based on an sctuarial valuation. The City's
contribution rates for the covered payroll of public safety employees and political subdivision employees
were 4.10% and 03004, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2019. Contributions to the OPEB plan
for the City were $111,403 for the vear ended June 30, 2019, Employvees are nol required to contribute to
the OPEB plan.

OFPEEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Ouwiflows of Reseurces and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Relaied fo OPEB

At June 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of §1,263,137 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total OPEB Lability used 1o
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation from June 30,
2017, The City's proportion of the net OPEB linbility was based on actunl contributions by the City
during the relevant fiscal vear relative to the actual contributions of all participating plan members,
excluding coatributions to sepamtely finance specific linbilities of individual employers or NHRS, At
June 30, 2018, the City"s proportion was approximately 0.2759 percent, which was an increase of 0.0834
percentage points from ils proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.

For the vear ended June 30, 2009, the City recognized an OPEB expense of $410,742, At June 30, 2019,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

D firred Deferrad
Chellows of Inflows of

Besources Resources
Dhifferences betaeen expected and actunl

experience £ T4
Met diffcrance between projected and petual
earnings on OPEB plan investments b} 4013
Changes in proportion and differences between City
confributions and proportionate shase of confributions Bl,192
City comributions subsequent 1o 1he
measuwrement dete 101,403
Tatals £ 200009 % 4013
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The City reported 3111403 as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from City
contritutions subsequent to the measuremert date. This amount will be récopmized as a reduction of the
net OPEBR lability in the measurement period ended June 30, 2019, Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred nflows of resources related o OPEBR will be recognized in OPEB
expense for the measurement periods as follows:

Juve 30,
i) R g ET,:'I 54
2020 {1,252)
2021 {1,252)
20232 (257)

8 &4 493
Acriarial Asswmptions
The total OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017,

using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.50 percemt

Wapge inflation 3.2% parcamnt

Ealery increases 5,60 percent, sveraps, including inflation
Imvestment rate of retwrn T.25 percent, net of QPEB plan imvestment expense,

imlwding inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 healthy annuitant and employes generational mortality ahles
for males and females with credibility adjustments, adjusted for fully generational morality
improvements using scale MP-2015, based on the last experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the most
recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period July [, 2010 — June 30, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB Plan investments was selected from a best estimate range
determined using the building bleck approach. Under this method, an expected future real rebur runge is
calculated separately [or each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return net of investment expenses by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Following is a table presenting target
allocations snd geometric real rates of return for each assel class:

Weighted Avwerage Long-Term
Asget Clags Tarpet Allgcation Expected Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 25% (0-25)1.80%
Domestic equity 3084 4.25.4 . 50%
Ideriational equaty 24 4. 50-6.00%
Real estate 0% 3.15%
Private equity 5% 6.25%
Private debi 5% 4.25%
Cipporiunistic 1% 2.15%
Total 100
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The discount rate used to measure the collective total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2018 was 7.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be
made under the current statute RSA 100-A: 16 and that plan member contributions will be made under
RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan's fiduciary net position was projected o
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on OPEB Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the collective total OPEB Hability,

Senxitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net OPER Linbility to Changes in the Discount
Rinee

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net OFEB lability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB linbility
would be if it were calculated using & discount rate that is 1-percentage-paint lower or 1-percentage-point
higher than the single discount rate:

Current
1% Deerease Discourt Rt 1% Increase
(6.23%) [T25%) [5.25%)
Met OPED Liahility § 1314578 ¥ 1.263,137 £ 1,118,760
SINGLE EMPLOYER PLAN
Plan Descripion

The City of Claremont, New Hampshire administers the retiree health care benefits program, a single
emplover defined bencfits plan that is used W provide postemployment benefits other than pensions
(OPER) for all permaenent fulltime employees, Mo assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria
in paragraph 4 of Satement 73,

Benefits Pravided

Per RSA 100-A:50, any political subdivision of the state that provides [or its active employees 1o receive
medical, life and dental insurance shall permit its employees upon retirement to participate in the same
plan gs its active members, Accordingly, in addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides
medical, life msurance, and dental benefits to its eligible retirees and their dependents. General employees
hired before July 1, 2011 must meet one of the following eligibility requirements: age 80 or older with no
minimum service requirement, age 50 with 10 years of service, or age plus service equals 70 with &
minimum of 20 years of service. General employees hired on or afer July 1, 2011 must meet the
following eligibility requirements: age 55 regardless of years of creditable service or age 60 with a
minimum of 30 years of service. Police officers and firefighters hired before July 1, 2011 must meet the
following cligibility requirements: age 45 with 20 years of service or age 60 with no minimum service
requirement. Police officers and firefighters hired on or after July 1, 2011 must meet the following
eligibility requirements: age 50 with a minimum of 25 years of service, age 52.5 with a minimum of 25
years of service or age 60 with no minimum service requirement. Retirees and their covered spouses pay
the full cost of the medical premivms,
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Employees Covered By Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Insctive amployees or beneficiaries currenily recelving bene il pavments T4
Active emplovees o1
1465
Tdal OFER Liabilisy

The City"s total OPEB liability of 32,421 698 was measured as of June 30, 2019, and was determined by
a rolliforwand of the actuerial valuation as of July 1, 2017 with results actuarially projected on a “no gain/
no loss” basis.

Acruariad Assumipyions and Olver Tnpais for OPFEE

The wial OPER liability in the July 1, 20017 valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all perinds included in the measurement, unless otherwise

specified:

[mflaticn 2,50 percent
Salary inoreases 3.25 percent
Discount rate 3.51 percent
Hesltheare cost trend rates 8.50% for 2019, decreasing 0.50% per yoar to an

wtimate rate of 5,00% for 2026 and later years,

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Municipal Bond Index as of
June 30, 2019,

Maorality rates were based on the RPH-2017 Total Dataset Mortality Table fully generational using Scale
MP-2017, The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial valuation date of July 1, 2017 project to June 30, 2019 on a *no gain'no loss™ basis.

Changes in the Tofal OPER Liability

Total OPED
Ligbili
Balance at June 30, 2018 £ 2,300,292
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 102,308
Interest 90,273
Changes in assumptions or other inguts T,O5S
Benefit pegymenis {141,230}
Met changes 121,406
Balance at Junc 30, 2019 $ zazi09
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Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a decrease in the discount rate from 3.87% at June 30,
Z0018 10 3.51% at June 30, 2019

Senxitivity of the Total OPER Liability to Changes in the Divcount Rate
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability

would be if it were calculated using o discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point
higher than the current discount rate;

Current
1% Drecrease DCriscount Raia 1% Increase
gi.jl':lnjﬁ [3.5|'?!_-‘g] {jé[%[
Tetal OPEB Liability £ 2575227 2421698 £ 21B48TH

Sensitivity of the Total OPER Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rute

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability
would be i it were calculated uzing healthcare cost trend mates that are |-percentage-pont lower (750
percent decreasing to 4,00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9,50 percent decreasing to 6.0 percent)
than the current healtheare cost frend rate;

Healtheare
Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rixles %0 Inorease
(T.50% (5.50% (1 50%
decraasing decreasing decreasing
lex 4. 00%%5) o 5.00%) 1o 6.00%)
Tatal OPEBR Liabillty £ 2121394 £ 2421698 £ 2662124

OPEER Expenve and Deferred Quiflows of Resonrces amd Deferved Inflows of Resources Reloted to
OPEE

For the yvear ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of 8205,506. At June 30, 2019, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the

following sources:

Dezferred Deferred
Cruttlows of Trflorws of
Besouroes Resources
Differences between expected and sotual
experience 5 13,677
Changes of assumptions 68 458
Totals £ B2.135 % -

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources amd deferred inflows of resources related to OPED
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
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luns 30,

20240 5 12025

2021 12525

2022 12,925

2023 12025

2024 12022

Thereafier 17.513

5 Slll] 3

NOTE 7—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description

The City contributes to the New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS), a public employee retirement
system that adminisiers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit ponsion plan. The plan provides
service, disability, death and vested retirement allownnces to plan members and bencficiaries. Benefit
provisions are established and may be amended by the New Hampshine State legislature,

The NHRS issues a publicly available fimancial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary mformation for NHRS. That report may be obtained by writing to New Hampshire
Retirement System, 54 Regional Drive, Concord, New Hampshire 03301 or from their website ot
www, nhrs.org.

Substantially all full-time state and local emplovees, public school teachers, permanant frefighters and
permanent police officers within the State are eligible and required to participate i the Pension Plan.

‘The Pension Plan is divided into two membership groups, State and local employees and teachers belong
to Group I, Police and firefighters belong to Group 11, All assets are held in a single trust and are available
to pay refirement benefits (o all members.

Benefits Prowided

Group [ members at age 60 or 65 (for members who commence service after July [, 2011) qualify for s
normal service retivement allowanee based on vears of creditable service and average final salary for the
highest of either three or five vears, depending on when their service commenced. The vearly ponsion
amount is 160 ar 1.667% of average final compensation (AFC), multiplied by years of creditable service.
At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recaloulated at 166 or 1.515% of AFC multiplied by years of
creditable service.

Group 11 members vested by January 1, 2012, who are age 60, or members who are at least age 435 with at
least 20 years of creditable service, can receive a retirement allowance at a rate of 2.5% of AFC for each
wear of creditable service, not o exceed 40 vears, Members commencing service on or afier July 1, 2011
or members who have not attained status as of January 1, 2012 can receive a retirement allowance at age
52.5 with 25 years of service or age 60. The bencfit shall be equal to 2% of AFC times creditable service
up to 42.5 years. However, a member who commenced service on or after July 1, 20171 shall not reccive a
retirement allowance until attaining the age of 5.5, but may receive a reduced allowance aflter age 50 if
the member has at least 25 years of creditable service where the allowance shall be reduced, for each
month by which the benefit commencement date precedes the month after which the member attains 52.5
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vears of age by ‘4 of 1%, For Group [I members who commenced service prior to July 1, 2011, who have
not attained vested status prior to January 1, 2012, benefits are calculated depending on age and years of
creditable service as follows:

Yeoars of Creditable Service s of MdinEmm Mlirdmm Benefll

January 1, 2002 Age Service  Multiplier
At lezst 3 but less than 10 years i 21 2.4%
At least & but less than § vears 47 22 23%
At leest 4 but less than & yvears 48 23 220
Less thon 4 years 49 24 2.1%

Members of both groups may qualify for vested deferred allowances, disability allowances and death
benefit allowances subject to meeting various eligibility requirements. Benefits are based on AFC or
ecarnglle compenzsation andfor service,

Funding Policy

Covered police officers and fire employees are required to contribute £1.55% and 11.80%, respectively of
their covered salary, whereas peneral emplovees are required to contribute 7,00 of their coverad salary.
The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The City's pension contribution rates
for the year ended June 30, 2012 for covered payroll of police officers, fire emplovees, and general
employees were 25,33%, 27.79%, and 11.08%, respectively. The City confributes 100% of the employver
cost for police officers, fire employvees, and general employees of the City.

Per RSA-100:16, plan member contribution rates are established and may be amended by the New
Hampshire State legisloture snd employer contribution rates are determined by the NHRS Board of
Truztees based on an actuarial valuation, The City's pension contributionsz to the NHRS were §1,028,708
tor the vear ending June 30, 2019.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Quiflows of Resowrces and Deferred Inflows af
Resources Relafed fo Pensiony

At June 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $12,583,011 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension Bability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the wial pension lability used (o
calculate the net pension liahility was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation from June
30, 2017. The City's proportion of the net pension lability was based on actual contributions by the City
during the relevant fiscal year relative to the actual contribulions of all participating plan members,
excluding contributions to separately finance specific liabilities of individual emplovers or NHRS, At
June 30, 2018, the City's proportion was approximately 0.2614 percent, which was a decrease of (.0208
percentage points from its proportion measured as of Jume 30, 2017.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $1,238,329. At June 30, 2019,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 1o penszions
from the following sources:
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Deferred Deferred
Chaflows of Inflows of

. Bespurces  Resowrces
Differences between expected and aciual

I!'Hl,'.l:filﬂ'lll;l: 5 “}U.45| g lﬂ'l.';'ﬂl
Met difference between projected and actual

earnings on persion plan investmends 291,228
Charges of nssumptions ET0.945

Charges in proportton and differences betwean City

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 261,018 T83,777
City confributions subsequent to the

measurgment date 1028, 708

Toials £ 226,022 %5 1,1769046

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and deferred mflows of resources related 1o pensions is
reflected as an increase to unrestricted pet position in the amount of $1,084,216, The City reported
51,028,708 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions
subsequent 1o the measurement dare. This amount will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liahility in the measurement period ended June 30, 2019, Other amounts reported as deferred oatflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in
the measurement periods as follows:

Jusie 303,
20049 5 485883
2020 233,652
2021 (463,604
2022 (200413}

$ 55508
Acroarial Assumpiions

The total pension liability was determined by a roll farward of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017,
uzing the following actuarial assumptions;

Inflation 2.50 porcent
Wape inflation 325 percen
Salary increases 5.60 percent, average, including inflation

Tvestment rate of return 7.25 porcent, net of pension plan nvestment expense,
ingluding inflation
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 employee generational mortality mbles for males and females,
with credibility adjustments, adjusted for fully generational martality improvements using Scale MP-
2015, based on the last experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the most
recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period July 1, 2000 - June 30, 2015.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected from & best estimate range
determined using the building block approach, Under this method, an expected [uture real return range is
calculated separntely for cach asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rite of retum by weighting the expected future real rates of return net of investment expenses by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Following is a table presenting targed
allocations and geometric real rates of return for each asset class:

Weighted Average Long-Term
Asset Cligs Turget Allocaticn Expacted Renl Bae of Return

Fixed income 25% (0.25)-1.80%
Diomestic equity A0%% 4254 508
Internmionnl equity 20%% 4 50-6.00%
Real estale I 3.25%
Private eguty - &.215%
Private dolbd 5% 4. 25%5
Cipportunistic 3% 2.15%
Total 100%
Discouns Rate

The discount rate used 1w measure the collective pension liability was 7.23%, The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actunrially determined contribution rateés and the member mte. For purposes of the projection, member
contributions and employer contributions are projected based on the expected payroll of cument members
only. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected o be available
to make all peojected future benefit payments of current plan members, Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of returm on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit pavments to
determine the collective pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabillly to Changes In fhe Disconni
Rare

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were caleulated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-paint lower or 1-percentnge-paint
higher than the single discount rate:

Cuorreni
1% Decrense Discount Rate | %0 InGrease
(6.25%) {7.25%) {8.25%)
Cliy's proportionate shase of the
net pension Hability S 16,744 460 512585011 g 9099265

NOTE 8—LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS
The City closed its landfill in 2002. State and federal laws and regulations required that the City place a

final cover on its landfill when closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the
landfill site for thirty years after closure. An estimated lability has been recorded based on the fiture
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postelosure care costs that will be incurred, The estimated liability for landfill postclosure care costs has a
balance of §120,000 as of June 30, 2019, However, the actual cost of postelosure care may be higher due
to inflation, changes in technology, or change in landfill lows and regulations. The Citv will finance the
postelosure care costs through annual appropriations,

The following is a summary of changes in the estimated liability for postelosure care costs for the year
ended June 30, 2019

Balance - July 1, 2018 $ 130,000
Expenditures recognized in the General Fund (17.501%
Met change in the estimated liability for postelosure care costs 7501
Balance - June 30, 2019 3 120,000

NOTE 9—INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The City has combined the cash resources of its govemmental fund tvpes. For sccounting and reporting
purposes, that portion of the pooled cash balance iz recorded in the specific fund as an interfund balance.
In addition, the General Fund directly pays for various items which are subsequently reimbursed from the
applicable fund. These unpaid balances are represented in the interfund balances,

Interfund balances at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

G R
Dioailonvn
Tux sl L BT
Carderal Finarbng  Fermarainl Oowermmergal  Waler kT

b GeEmeral Fund T 267404 % 300000 8 S94THR S IELATI.OfS TRAM) O§F 4USTH
? * Nonmajor Governmenin
(= Funds $ 1536248 120310 683,75 12498  L352E15
;zz'ﬂ-'pterFurd 23505 21595
i Sewer Fund 3445 344

51336143 5 267406 § 30000 § FAMI 386733 5 1ML LOI06RE

In addition to the short-term interfunds noted above, the City’s General Fund advanced monies o the
Downtown Tax Increment Financing Fund. These advances were to assist in funding the operations and
are not expected to be repaid within one vear. As of June 30, 2019, the Downtown Tax Increment
Financing Fund owed the General Fund for advances in the smount of $781,637.

During the vear, several interfund transactions occurred between funds. These transfers were made in
accordance with budgetary authorizations. Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as

follows:
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S s . ::érmll:ic_ﬁ; T e e
Memmagor
| Chenieral Permmnes Chvvernmentad
o Fund Funds Funds Toinla
2 Genoral Fund £ 2MER3 % 119151 § 147.RM
Diovatown Tax Increment Financing Fund £ 287590 2RTA90
i Eiﬂuruilujnr-ﬁﬂmthnurﬂa] Fumds 303,193 T.250 19,270 329.71]
Monmajor Proprietary Fund 0,818 30,829
5 590,783 § 15933 § 169230 F V85066

NOTE I0—RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Met position is restricted for specific purposes as follows:

Permanent Funds - Principal
Permanent Funds - Income

Crrants Fund

HUD Gronts Fumd

Police Grants Fund

DHisasier Fund

Public Works Projects Fund
Adrport and Fire Granis Fund
Library Hiztoric Presarvation Fund
Playground Project Fund

£ 3515930
126,705
519,806

6,807

44,235
50686

253 a6
4142

1091

045

£ 4532693

NOTE 11—COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE

The components of the City"s fund balance for its governmental funds at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Ceneral
Fund

Moms pendable fors

Addvinces toother funds

P'repoil expenses

Permanent Funds - principal
Restricied ko

Permanent Funds - ncome

Ciramis. Fund

HLUT Gromis Fund

Police Grants Fund

Disnster Furgd

Public Works Projects Fund

Ajrpart und Fire Grumts Fund

Library Historic Presepvainn Fond

Playground Projet Fund

Capinl Leages

TR1 627
164,402

107924

Dierwantoasn

Tax Incremeni Morenair Total

Fnarcing FPermaneed Governmanial  Governmenial
Eurd Eursls Euncs Euinds

5 T8LAaEY

T 4012

3 3515.55%0 3515930

126,705 126,H15

5 S0 A0G 519,806

i a.807

44,335 44,255

50005 39,9806

253045 Faihi

4,43 4,142

I, 1001

045 5

107 924
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[imymbinym
Tax Increment Monmajor Tl
ensial Faanging Pemmarent  Govermmenial  Govenmmemiol
Committed for:
Capital Reserve Funds il4519 GI14. 519
Expendable Trust Funds 15144441 L30a441
Puble Warks Projects Fund 1104, A 110021k
Playgroumd Project Fund 194 124
Encunibrances 218914 2i8914
Conggrvation Fund 4168 9,158
Assigned fors
Encumbrances 4593 6560 453 561
Comtimgency for abatemenis 350,000 000
Dreplgrated o affsct subsequent
Year's me rale Ed5.59) R )
U'nassigieed frs
Ciepsml Fuand T3 1404346
Diowmiown Tax Inerement
Fianrcing Fund (deficl) B 01047 2448) L1047 245
5 431v0E:  § (1d7245) 5 R640635 5 SAITHRE1 5 00450333

NOTE 12—ENCUMBRANCES

The encumbrances of the General Fund as of June 30, 201%, by function, are as follows:

Cieneral govermment 5 143,742 § 191955
Public safety 54,930 57.579
Highways and strests 19,742 230,707
Banitation 4,562
Culture and recrention 00 23,007
218,914 507,210

Less: revenues not susceptible

to accrual { 14,2500

£ 218914 5 493,660

NOTE 13—PROPERTY TAXES

Taxes are levied on the assessed wvalustion of all taxable real property as of the prior April |
(§723,270,277 as of April 1, 2018) and are due in four instaliments on July 2, 2018, October 1, 2018,
January 1, 2019 und April &, 20019, Taxes paid after the doue dates accrue interest at 12% per annum for
tanes assessed before April 1, 20019 and at 8% per annum for taxes assessed after April [, 2019. Property
taxes are recognized as revenue when received in cash or if available to finance current period operations

{within sixty days of vear-end).

Under State law, the Tax Collector obtains tax liens on properties which have unpaid taxes in the
following calendar vear after taxes were due for the amount of vnpaid taxes, interest and costs, These
priority tax lions accrue interest at 18% per annum for properties liened before April 1, 2019 and at 14%
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per annum for properties liened after April [, 2019, If the property is not redeemed within a two year
redemption period, the property may be tax deeded to the Cilty

In accordance with State law, the Ciy collects taxes for the Cloremont School District and Sullivan
County, both independent governmental units, which are remitted to them as required by law, The City
alzo collects State of New Hampshire Education taxes, which are remitted directly to the school district.
Total taxes appropriated during the vear were $17,318,451 and 51,996,375 for the Cluremont School
District and Sullivan County, respectively, These taxes are not recognized as revenues in these financial
statements. The City bears responsibility for uncollected taxes,

NOTE 14—RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is cxposed to various risks of losses related to torts) theft of, damage to, and destruction of
mssels; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Dunng the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019, the City was a member of and participated in & public entity risk peol (Trust) for property
and liability insurance and worker's compensation coverage. Coverage has not been significantly reduced
from the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded covernpe in any of the past three years,

The Trusi agreements permit the Trost to make additional assessments to members should there be a
deficiency in Trust asseis o meet itz liabilities, Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require members of pools with a sharing of risk to determine whether or not such
asgessment 1§ probable and, if o, a reasonable estimate of such assessment. At this time, the Trust
foresees no likelihood of an additional assessment for any of the past years, Claims expenditures and
liabilities are reported when it iz probable that a loss has occurred and the amoont of that loss can be
reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not reported,
Baszed on the best available information there is no liability at June 30, 2019,

Property and Liakility Insurasce

The Trust provides cerlain property and liability insurance coverage to member towns, eities, and other
qualified political subdivisions of New Hampshire. As & member of the Trust, the City shares in
contributing to the cost of and receiving benefit from a self-insured pooled risk management program.
The program includes a Self-Insured Retention Fund from which is paid wp to 3200,000 for each and
every covered property, erime andfor liability loss that exceeds $1,000, up to an aggregate of $1,200,000.
Each property loss is subject to a $1,000 deductible. All losses over the agerepate are coverad by
insurance policies.

Warker's Compensation

The Trust provides statutory worker’s compensation coverage to member towns, cities, and other
gualified political subdivisions of New Hampshire. The Trust is self-sustaining through annual member
premiums ond provides coverage for the statutorily required workers” compensation benefits and
emplover's liability coverage up to $2,000,000. The program includes a Loss Fund from which is paid up
tox $500,000 for each and every covered claim.
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NOTE 15—CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Litigution

The City's management estimates that any claims against the City, which are not covered by insurance,
are immaterial and would not affect the financial position of the City.

Federal Gramis

The City participates in a number of fedemlly pssisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance awdits by the prantors or thelr representatives. The amounts, iT any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this time, although
the City expects such amounts, if any, o be immaterial.

NOTE 16—RESTATEMENT OF EQUITY

During the year ended June 30, 2019, it was determined that various trust funds held by the City had been
misclassified. These include scholarship funds held on behalf of the Claremont School District and are
reported as agency funds in these financial statemeanis,

Government-Wide Staferments

The impact on net position of the Governmental Activities as of July 1, 2018 is as follows:

Met position - July 1, 20018 (& previously reported) B OIE036676
Ammount of restutement due to:
Ageney Funds classified as Permanent Funds (285,890
Met position - July 1, 2018, as restated % 17,750,786
Crovermmental Fonds

The impact on fund balance of the Permanent Funds as of July 1, 2018 is as follows:

Fund balance - July 1, 2018 (as prevdously reported) % 3680787
Amount of pestatement due to:
Agency Funds classified as Permanent Funds (285,890
Fund balance - July 1, 2018, as restated 3,304 897
Fidueiary Fands

The impact on net position of the Private Purpose Trust Funds as of July |, 2018 iz as follows:

MNet position - July 1, 2018 (as previcusly reported) % 18,032,138
Amount of restatersent dus 1o
Apeney Funds clessiflied & Private Purpose
Teust Funds (7,319.093)
Mt position - July 1, 2018, as restated  10.713.045
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NOTE 1T—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Nate Payable

Dring July 2009, the City authorized the issuance, on behalf of the Claremont Development Authority, a
long-term note pavable in the amount of $50.000 for the architecture and enpineering design for
renovations of the Farwell Block. This note is payable by the Claremont Development Authority in one
balloon payment on or before July 31, 2021, including interest at 2.50%.

Capital L Payahle

Dyring August 2019, the City entered into a capital lease agreement for the acquisition of vehicles and
equipment in the amount of $1,050,800. This lease s due in annual installments of $125,867, including
interest at 2.99%, through September 2023, The annual installments are reduced to 521,573 through
September 2026. Effective with the September 2027 installment, the annual payments will be 544,702
through September 2033, The contract is subject to cancellation should funds not be appropriated to meet
payment obligationz,

Srente of New I frire Revalving Loainy

During September 2019, the City had drawn down an additional $55,113 on its existing Water Pallution
Control Revolving Loan Fund Program for the Main Street Utility project. The outstanding balance of
£721.551 from this Revolving Loan Fund Program was converted into long-term debt during October
2019, The City received a principal forgiveness subsidy of 5136004 during November 2019, The balance
of §585,547 is to be repaid in annual installments through NMovember 2023 at 2.00%,

During July 2019, the asset management project for the wastewmer and stormwater collection systems
was deemed to be complete and approved by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services,
The outstanding principal balance of 559,996 from the Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund Program

wias forgiven,
NOTE 18—IMPLEMENTATION OF FUTURE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Governmental Accounling Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciory
Activities, which the City is required 1o implement in the fiscal vear ending June 30, 2020. Management
believes that this pronouncement will have a potentially significant impact on the City’s financial
statements, Taxes collected on behalf of other governmental entities and apency funds held on behalfl of
the Claremont Scheol District will be reported as Custodial Funds. Furthermore, the City will be required
o report on the additions 1o and deductions from the Custodial Funds,
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CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - General Fund

For the Y ear Ended Jume 30, 2009

Hewenies:
Tuxes
Licenses and permits
Intergowernmental
Charges for services
[rileres] moome
Miscailaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Carrent operations:
Cieneral povernmeni
Pubfic safery
Airport/Aviation center
Highways and sireets
Samitation
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation

Diebt zervice:

Principal retircment
Intersst and fiscal charges
Tota]l Expenditures

Excess revenues over {under) expendituses

Oeher financing sources {uses);
Transfiors in
Transfers out

Total ather financing sources (uses)
Met change in fimd balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

- Budgetary Basis
Fund balance at gnd of yvear

- Budgetary Hasis

Yariance with
Hud_ﬁ_-:t-ud Amounis Final Budget -
HAgtunl Fovorable
5 1L0170,197 £ 11,171,197 £ 10532151 5 (239,046)
2136410 2136410 2391471 255,061
1,064,157 1,064,157 1,065,052 05
1,057 608 I 057,608 1045431 [(12,177)
60, 50 &0, 500 09, 5% 48,659
03336 ‘?3& 214,565 121,239
15,583,198 h.‘ir‘.ﬁ}_.ﬁ!?! 15,757 829 174631
4 621,565 4,573,145 3,895 759 77,386
5,741,494 5741246 £.456,604 284 642
12,954 112,054 65,521 47,433
2,680 408 2,589 408 2,560,386 29,022
177,405 177 40 174,824 2,585
371,747 371,747 JRT,024 (9,277}
I, %al,552 | 94,552 E20.974 151,578
B15,798 819,022 Bl9022 .
354,271 351,047 351,034 i3
16 846,198 16,697,530 15,534,148 1,163 382
i 1,263,000 (1,114,332) 223,681 1,338,013
138,000 135 (Hm} 147,534 8,534
{537.515) {765, TH3) {597,118) 172,665
{399.515) {631,783) {44%,284) 182 4%
(1662515 (1,746,115]) (225,603) 1,520,513
5,132,147 5,132,147 5,133,147 =
§ 3469632 5 3386032 0§ 4906544 5 1520512

See gocompanylng Rotes fa the reguired supplementary formation
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SCHEDMILE 2
CITY OF CLAREMOXNT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Chnnges in the City's Proportionate Share of the Net OFEB Liability

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Plan Information Only
Cily's Cily's Proportionate Plan Fiduciary
City's Proportionate Share of the Met Met Position
Proportion of Share of the City's OPEB Liability a5 0 Percentage
Measurement the Met OPEBR Met OPEB Covered a5 a Percentage of of the Tetal
Period Ended Liability Liability Pavredl Covered Payroll QOPED Liabality
June 35, 2018 027588692 5 1,263,137 5 6132474 20600 T.53%
June 30, 2007 0. 19245460% £ OFTeSsE O 53070 13.95% T.81%
June 30, 2016 0.15732865% % 955278 % 4104210 15.65% 571%

Seg aocompanying moles fo the required supplementary informalion
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SCHEDULE 3

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of City OPER Contribulions

For the Yeor Ended June 30, 2019

Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Plan Information Only

Contributions in
Relation 1o the Contributions
Contractually Contractually Contribution City's 5 o Percentage
Reguired Required Deficiency Covered of Covered
Year Ended Conribadion Contribution XLCES Payroll Payroll
Jane 30, 20019 5 111,403 L (111,403y 5 - £ 5R62140 .90
Jome 30, 2018 1 122,033 £ (122,033 § - £ 6132474 [L99%h
Jupe 30, 2017 5 114,068 b (114,068 3 . £ 6,307,134 1.81%
Jupe 30, 2016 5 114,660 £ (1146605 % - £ oa104210 I.88%

Ko mpnﬁpnr:fjrﬁ ricder fa e mcpﬂrn:'d.fu,hjll'l!#lt'ﬂfﬂﬂr‘ Jqﬁ#m:lffﬁ.'f
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SCHEDULE 4

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMISHIRE

Sehedule of Changes in the City's Total OPEBR Liability and Related Ratios
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Single Employer Plan Information Only

2019 2018

Total OPEE Liability:

Service cost ] 102,308 ] Th256

[mierest L0273 80,774

Changes of sssumptions or other inputs T0,055 10,24

Differences between expecied and acioal experfence 19,149

Benefit pavments (141,230 {130,688}

Met change in todal OPEB liability 121,408 57,515

Total OPEB liability - beginning 2,300,292 23270
Total OPER liakility - ending 5 2421098 5 2,300,292
Covered employes poyroll § 5812146 £ 5472459
Total OPEB liabilify as & porcentape
of covered employes peyroll 41.67% 42,03%

New accumpaming rotes to the reguived supplementary information
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SCHEDULE 5

CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of Changes in the City's Proportionate Share of the Met Pension Liability
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

City's City's Proportionote Plan Fiduciary
City's Proportionate Share of the Met Nt Poaition
Proportion of Shars of the Cily's Penston Liability {Azzet) oz p Percentuge
Measiirement the Met Pension Met Pengian Covvered a5 a8 Percentapge of of the Tatal
Petiod Ended Libili Lisbilj Payral] ¢ [ Payroll Pension Lishilil
Jume 30, 2018 02613596% & 1Z,585,011 B 6132474 208, 33% 64730
June 30, 2017 QZE219702% & 13 87RAZ9 g 4307,1M 220.04% G52 66%
June 30, 2006 0.28358653% § 15079984 £ 6104210 LT Dd%s 58.30%
June 30, 2013 0.28298248% 3 11210447 £ 6,084055 [84.23% 65.47%
June 30, 2014 0.26142305% 3 9812738 £ 5439299 I B0 40%% 66.32%
Juna 30, 20113 0.25823893% % 11,114,047 § 5225327 212.70%% 59,810

See accompanying notes fo the required supplementary igfrmation
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SCHEDULE &
CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of City Pension Contribulions

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Cuontributions
Relation to the Contributions
Contraciually Condrpctually Contribulion City's a3 a Percentage
Required Reguinsd Daficiency Covared of Covered
Year Ended Contribution Contributicn [Exeess) Puyredl Payzoll
June 30, 2019 5 1LO2ET0R £ (1028708 % - §  5.%62,140 | 7.55%
June 30, 2018 5 1L104.658 8 (1,104.658) & - 5 6132474 [8.001%
June 30, 2017 § 1033810 § (10333810) % - 5 6,307,134 16.39%
June 30, 2016 105,464 FOoiLOl5464) % = £ 6104210 [6.64%
Jume 30, 2015 £ 49374 5 (945374) ¥ - 5 6084955 I 5.60%
Junse 30, 2014 3 BA8, 117 5 (B48,117y % - 5 543929 [5.59%
June 30, 2013 & 42,1200 §F  (642,120) B - § 5225337 12,29%

Eea aocompanyivg notes fo e reguired supplementory informalion
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CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 20019

NOTE 1—BUDGET TO ACTUAL RECONCILIATION

Amounts recorded as budgetary amounts in the Schedule of Revenoes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance — Budgel and Actual [Budgetary Busis) = General Fund (Schedule 1) are reported on the basis
budgeted by the City. Those amounts differ from those reported in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds (Exhibit D). Property tax budgetary revenues are
recognized when levied rather than when susceptible to accrual, Budgetary revenues and other financing
sources and expenditures and other financing uses were adjusted for encumbrances, capital lease activity,
non-budgetary activity and budgetary transfers as follows:

RBevenues Expendifures
and Oiher and Other
Financing Financing
Sourees Uses
Per Exhibit D £ 16,515,552 5 16,614,072
Difference in property taxes meeting
susceptible to accrunl criteria (294,864
Encumbramces - June 30, 2019 TELST4
Encumbrances = June 30, 2018 (1.013,11&)
Capital lease activity (296,523 (18E,590)
Mon-budgetary activity (13497
Budgetary transfirs B335
Fer Bchedale | £ 15905 663 £ 16,131,266

NOTE 2—BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE

The ecomponents of the budgetary fund balance tor the General Fund are as follows:

Nonspendable fir:
Advances to other funds £ TR1B3T
Prapaid expamses 164 405k
Assigmed for;
Contingency for phatemenis 350,000
Desigrated to offset subsequent year's tax rate 45,500
Unassignesd for:
Cieneral operations L ) ]

¥ 4,906,544

NOTE 3—SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET OFEB LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF CITY OFEB CONTRIBUTIONS

In mccordance with GASBE Statement #73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment

Benefies Other Than Pensions, the City iz required Lo disclose historical information for each of the prior
ten years within a schedule of changes in the City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability and

K]



CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 20019

schedule of City OPEB contributions. The City implemented the provisions of GASE Statement #75
during the year ended June 30, 2018, Accordingly, the historic information has only been presented for
those years which information was readily available. Additional disclosures will be made in future years
as additional information becomes available.

NOTE 4—SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND
RELATED RATIOS

In accordance with GASB Statement #73, dccownting amd Finmancial Reporting for Postemplomment
Benefits Ofher Thon Pensions, the City is required to disclose historical mformation for each of the pror
ten vears within a schedule of changes in the City’s wial OPEB liability and related ratios. The City
mmplemented the provisions of GASR Statement #75 during the year ended June 30, 2018, Accordingly,
the historic information has only been presented For those vears which informution was readily available,
Additional disclosures will be made in future years as additional information becomes available.

Mo assets are accurmulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 73,
Change in Actuarial Assumpiions

For the City's June 30, 2018 actuaral valuation on its single-employer OPEB plan, there were several
changes in the actuarial assumplions previously used in the June 30, 2017 sctuarial valuation. The
diszcount rate was reduced from 4.50% in the last full valuation at June 30, 2016 to 3.58% as of June 30,
2007 and to 3.87% as of June 30, 2018, In addition, the actuarial cost method has been updated from the
Prajected Unit Credit with linear proration to decrement to the Entry Age Normal Level as a percentage
of Salary. In conjunction with the cost method change, the salary scale has been updated from a constant
3.0% to 3.25% plus merit increases based on the New Hampshire Retirement System actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2017. An witial annual healthcare cost trend of 8.5% reduced by 0.5% decrements to un
ultimate 5.0% long-term rate for all healthcare benefits was used in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation,
The healthcare cost trend was changed in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation to an initial rate of 9.0/
reduced by 0.5% decrements to an ultimate rate of 3.0%.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation reflects a decrease in the discount rate from
3.87% at June 30, 2018 to 3.51% at June 30, 2019,

NOTE 5—SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF CITY PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

In accordance with GASB Statement #68, dccounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the City is
required to disclose historical information for each of the prior ten years within a schedule of changes in
the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of City pension contributions. The
City implemented the provisions of GASB Statement #68 during the vear ended June 30, 2015
Accordingly, the historic information has only been presented for those years which information was
readily available, Additional disclosures will be made in future years as the information becomes
available,
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CITY OF CLAREMONT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Change in Actuarial Avsumptions

For the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation, the New Hampshire Retirement System redueced its assumption
for the investment rate of retum from 7.75% to 7.23%, decreased the price inflation from 3.0% to 2.5%,
decreased the wage inflation from 3.75% to 3.25%, and decreased the salary increases from 5.8% to
5.6%. Additionally, the mortality table was changed from the RP-2Z000 projected to 2020 with Scale AA
te the RP-2014 employee gencrational mortality table for males and females, adjusted for mortality
improvements using Scale MP-2015.
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